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To be the premier financial institution, by empowering our

members for success through innovative products and services

MISSION

To empower our members by providing excellent service and sound financial guidance to

create partnerships that will result in prudent, progressive and competitive business

decisions, yielding mutual success.

VISION

We are open, honest, and accountable to our stakeholders

Team members are committed to the organization’s success and sustainability

We actively engage in community development

We are committed to the social and economic development of our members.

Team members’ well-being is highly valued.

We foster a friendly and professional environment in which to conduct business

We celebrate success

We reward performance

We see our members as family

We are committed to service excellence

We can be relied on for our financial stability and security

CORE VALUES

2020 ANNUAL REPORT 
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One who gains strength
by overcoming obstacles

possesses the only
strength which can
overcome adversity-
Albert Schweitzer
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CORRECTIONS AND CONFIRMATION

MATTERS ARISING

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’                                     

TREASURER’S/FINANCIAL REPORTS                 

AUDITOR’S                                                       

CREDIT COMMITTEE’S                                    

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S                        

NOMINATING COMMITTEE’S                         

THURSDAY JULY 15, 2021

1. ASCERTAINMENT OF QUORUM

   

2. CALL TO ORDER

3. RESOLUTIONS

4. PRAYER (ST. FRANCIS OF ASSISI)   

                         

5. OBITUARIES   

                                                                                                                                  

6. AUTHORITY TO CONVENE AND READING OF NOTICE OF

MEETING

7. WELCOME/ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS/APOLOGIES

           

8. CHAIRMAN’S OPENING REMARKS       

                            

9. MINUTES OF 3RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING              

10. REPORTS

11. ANY OTHER BUSINES 

12. ADJOURNMENT
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      GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED.
              3RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

                     HELD ON WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2021
      AT THE HOLLIS PETER LYNCH MULTI-PURPOSE BUILDING,

    HOLY TRINITY CHURCH, MIRIAM WAY, MONTEGO BAY
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You can either focus on
what's tearing you apart

or what's holding you
together- unknown





1 S T  R o w  ( l e f t  t o  r i g h t )
A l f r e d  G r a h a m -  T r e a s u r e r

R e v .  G l e n r o y  C l a r e  -  V i c e

P r e s i d e n t

M r .  H o r a c e  S m i t h -  D i r e c t o r

B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S

m i d d l e  r o w  ( l e f t  t o  r i g h t )
B r y c e  G r a n t -  D i r e c t o r

L a m b e r t  J o h n s o n -   P r e s i d e n t
V i n c e n t  R o s e - A s s t .  T r e a s u r e r

3 r d   R o w  ( l e f t  t o  r i g h t )
R o d c l i f f e  R o b e r t s o n -  A s s t .  S e c r e t a r y

S y n a n d r e  M o n t a q u e - D w y e r -  D i r e c t o r

C l e v e l a n d  P a r k e r -  S e c r e t a r y
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PRES I D ENT ' S  R EPORT
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Appreciation and Acknowledgement

I wish to express my sincere appreciation to my fellow Board Members, whose skillsets added much value to the

Credit Union. The late-night Virtual meetings and your commitment to the “Gateway Cause” is commendable. 

I also want to highlight the hardworking sub-committees that “got-the-job-done.” 

These committees were successful in carrying out the mandate with which they were given. The team that

spearheaded the Fairview relocation and Church Street projects as well as our active HR Committee.

Our Information Technology and Enterprize Risk Management Committees ensured that one of our major strategic

priorities (to optimize our processes through technology) and to Manage the risk in the Credit Union did a fantastic

job throughout the year, when their roles and functions were intensified during 2020.

Our Credit Committee must be commended for their diligence in managing the key portfolio of the Credit Union and

to the “watchdog”- Supervisory Committee that ensured we were acting in accordance with our policies, procedures

and best practices.

We recognized the priceless contribution of our many stakeholders whose contributions assisted Gateway in

achieving its goals. If it is one thing, this Pandemic has taught us all, is the importance of working together. The

following persons and institutions epitomized that spirit and it would be remised of me not to mention.

-Our member-owners

-Our staff

-Our Regulators and partners- Registrar of Co-operatives and Friendly Societies, The Jamaica co-operative Credit

Union League, CUNA Caribbean Limited, Quality Network Co-operative Limited, the National Union of Co-operative

Societies and The Credit Union Fund Managers Company Limited.

-Our Auditors- Crowe Horwarth
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MEET OUR LEADERS

J E N N I F E R  T A Y L O R - W I L S O NG E N E R A LM A N A G E R ( O P E R A T I O N S )

T A S H I C A  E V A N S - W A T S O NF I N A N C E  M A N A G E R

N I C O L E  H A U G H T O N  J O H N S O N

M A R K E T I N G  &  S A L E S  M A N A G E R

A L T A M O N T  K I N G
I . T  M A N A G E R  

H E R M A N  N E E D H A M

B R A N C H  S U P E R V I S O R -  F A L M O U T H )

O R N E L L  B E D A S S E -
C . E . O

N I C O L E  H A U G H T O N - J O H N S O N

M A R K E T I N G  &  S A L E S  M A N A G E R
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S A N D I N A  W I L L I A M S

H R  M A N A G E R

MEET OUR
LEADERS

D A N O V A N  R E I D -
C R E D I T  M A N A G E R

C I N D Y  B R O W N -
I N T E R N A L  A U D I T O R

R I C A R D  M A L C O L M -  B R A N C H

M A N A G E R - F A I R V I E W

R H A M O N A  S A M U E L S -B R A N C H  M A N A G E R -
C H U R C H  S T R E E T

K A D I A N  K E R R - S H A W

B R A N C H  M A N A G E R -  L U C E A

F E L E C I A  S P E N C E -D E L I N Q U E N C Y M A N A G E R
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NET LOANS

GROWTH

INCREASE IN

OPERATING

REVENUE

DELINQUENCY

RATE

10%

12%

3%
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Gateway performed remarkably well benchmarked against the PEARLS Standard. All ratios were within

the acceptable range with the exception of the Non-earning Assets/Total Assets and Net Income/Ave

Total Assets. There was a decline in the Non-earning Assets/Total Assets ratio from 9.2% in 2019 to 8%

in 2020 a movement in the right direction as it inches closer to the standard’s acceptable ratio of </=7%.

The Net Income/Ave Total Assets ratio also had a positive movement as it increased from 0.7% to 1.1%

against the acceptable ratio of >/= 2.3%. The results of the positive movements in these two ratios are a

direct result of the strategies of cost containment, loan and revenue growth spurred by the Board of

Directors during the past few years.
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63M

9Bn 

103 mil

Key Performance Indicators (3
yrs review)

Total Assets Growth
Gateway achieved another milestone during

2020 as its Total Assets reached $9Bn.  Total

Assets grew by $618M or 7.4% over 2019

balance of $8.384Bn to end the year at $9Bn.  

This represents real growth as Jamaica’s

annual inflation rate as per STATIN for the

calender year 2020 was 6.4%.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT 
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T R E A S U R E R ' S
R E P O R T

Key Performance Indicators
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PEARLS RATIO

T R E A S U R E R ' S
R E P O R T

2020 ANNUAL REPORT 

Gateway’s performance against the international PEARLS Standard is set out below:
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PROPOSAL FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020.

 

Available for Distribution                        $ 81,995,783.00  

                                                                                                 

Dividend on Permanent Shares (16%)    $  13,119,325.00              

Honoraria (6%)                                          $ 4,919,746.00                                                    

Permanent Reserve                                   $ 50,000,000.00

Retained Earnings                                      $ 13,956,712.00                                            

Total Distribution                                $ 81,995,783.00                                            
 

 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

 

Alfred Graham

Treasurer

 

 

PROPOSAL FOR THE FIXING OF MAXIMUM LIABILITY TO DECEMBER 31, 2020.
                                       

In keeping with Rule 70 it is proposed that the maximum liability shall not

exceed sixteen (16) times the Society’s Permanent capital.

Alfred Graham
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"Teamwork is the ability to work
together toward a common vision. The
ability to direct individual accomplishments
toward organizational objectives. It is the
fuel that allows common people to attain
uncommon results." --Andrew Carnegi



100%

LOW FEES

GET MOVING WITH A  
CAR LOAN FROM

GATEWAY

100%  MEMER SERVICE GUARANTEED

FAST TURNAROUND TIME

COMPETITIVE RATES

"Opening the way to your Financial success"



0 100 200 300
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Oct 

Nov 

Dec 

2020 MONTHLY DISBURSEMENT TREND

LOAN PURPOSE                                    NUMBER                       VALUE

CASH SECURED (INTERNAL)             3352                   655,230,235.82 

CASH SECURED (EXTERNAL)                   7                      1,904,300.00 

MORTGAGE                                              45                  554,082,004.57 

MOTOR VEHICLE                                   399                    715,571,037.70 

UNSECURED                                           963                  448,056,780.64 

TOTALS                                             4766                2,374,844,358.73

Amounts in mil $

A breakdown of loans disbursed during the year under review is set

out hereunder:

33 SOLIDITY AMIDST ADVERSITY...... 

Motor Vehicle
49.3%

Unsecured
20.2%

Mortgage
15.4%

Cash Secured
14.7%

Other
0.6%

PORTFOLIO MIX- 2020



C R E D I T  C O M M I T T E E S
R E P O R T

2020 ANNUAL REPORT 

34SOLIDITY AMIDST ADVERSITY...... 
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SUPERV ISORY
COMMITTEE 'S

REPORT

ATTENDANCE FOR MEMBERS AFTER NOVEMBER 25, 2020 AGM
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SUPERV ISORY
COMMITTEE 'S

REPORT
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Board of Directors Supervisory
Committee

Credit
Committee
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NOMINAT ING
COMMITTEE 'S

REPORT

Mr. Bryce Grant

Chairman                                                                  

Mrs. Lorna Rampasard 

Secretary                                         

Ms. Nova Parkinson

Member Representative

            

Mrs. Jaqueline Taylor

Administrative Assistant
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TOVA-MALKA TRENCH-ANDERSON

SHAMAR CAMPBELL

RONALD VERNON
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Savings:
Shares 
Deposits
Fixed Deposits
Solid Saver
Golden Harvest
Partner Plans
Treasure Chests Youth Savers

Insurance:
Family Indemnity Plan (F.I.P)
Family Critical Illness Plans
Critical Illness Rider
JCIA Insurance
Caribbean Assurance Health Plans

Loans:
Motor  vehicle (Private, commercial and trucks)
Mortgage (Residential & Commercial)
Home Equity
Unsecured
Line of Credit
Cash Secured
Investsecured

WHAT WE
OFFER 



FAIRVIEW BRANCH OPENING 



CLIPS FROM OUR ENID GONSALVES P.E.P
SCHOLARSHIPAWARDS 



GATEWAY TABLET DRIVE



C L I P S  F R O M  O U R
H E R M A N  J O H N S O N  &
B A Y L E Y - H A Y E
U N I V E R S I T Y
S C H O L A R S H I P S  A W A R D



CHRISTMAS TREAT



R E A D Y … S E T … G R O W
S E E D L I N G  P R O J E C T  2 . 0  



D O N A L D S O N  &  S P E N C E  B A R B E R  S H O P  O P E N I N G   



W
E W

ORK

HARD; 

W
E PLAY

HARDER.
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OBITUARIES
ADAMS EZROY

ALLEN ANDREA

ALLEN-LINTON

SANDRA 

ARTWELL FREDERICK 

ATKINSON PAMELIA 

BARR GERALD 

BLAIR JOAN 

BLAKE DENHAM 

BOWEN NORMA 

BRISSETT WESTINE

BRISSETTT ASHTON 

BROWN JAMES 

BROWN EUGENIE 

BROWN SHANNON 

CHAMBERS IONIE

CHRISTIE MICHELLE 

CLARKE ERROL

CLARKE MARJORIE 

COX-FOSTER VIVIANA 

CUNNINGHAM LEON

DAVIDSON LOWRY 

DAVIS NATALIE 

DAVIS KEVIN 

DAWES ALLAN 

DAWES ROWAN

DIXON HAYDEN

DRUMMOND ZEATAS 

ENGLISH MICHAEL

ENGLISH KATHLEEN 

FENTON VERONICA 

FORBES ENID 

FUNK JOYCELYN 

GIBSON RENFORD 

GINNARD DAVID 

GLEN ELEZ 

GORDON MAISIE 

GORDON EVELYN 

GORDON VIRIS 

GRAHAM ROSE 

GRANT ENOCH

GRANT-NEMBHARD CYNTHIA

GRAPINE JEAN GRAPINE

GREEN BERESFORD 

GREEN PATRICK 

GRIFFITHS O'DANE 

HAMILTON CASWELL 

HARTY ANN MARIE 

HARTY DAVIN 

HARVEY VINTON

HAUGHTON SANDRA 

HAUGHTON PAMELA IDA 

HAUGHTON LEWIN 

HAUGHTON-ALLEN

ROSEMARIE 

HEAVEN HYACINTH 

HEMMINGS PHILADENE 

HILL ORVILLE 

HOGG ELIZABETH

HUNTER CARLENE 

JACKSON MARGARET

JAMES ROBERT 

JARRETT CHISLON 

JOHNSON DELBERT 

KELSON DAISY

KERR MIRIAM

KIRLEW ELITA 

KNIBBS FLORINE

LAWRENCE GLORIA

MAY 

LAWRENCE-SAMUELS

IMOGENE

LEE CYNTHIA

LESLIE JEAN 

LINDO CLEVELAND 

LINTON VALERIE HALL 

MAINE MELVIN 

MALCOLM ENNIS 

MALCOLM JOSEPH 

MARTIN HECTOR

MAYE-STEPHENS

ALDITH

MCDONALD

BERESFORD 

MCDONALD GARNETT

MCDONALD WARREN

MCINTOSH DEBBIE

MCKENZIE PERCIVAL

MILLER NEVA

MITCHELL MARJORIE 

MONCRIEFFE RALPH 

MOODIE CAROL

MOODIE STACEY-ANN 

MOORE-CLARKE IDA 
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OBITUARIES
MORRISON GLADSTON

NEMBHARD STACEY ANN

NOBLE- KERR YVONNE

OTTEY LORNA 

PALMER ESTHER 

PALMER ALLISON 

PALTIE ASHANTAE 

PARKES KEVIN

PATTERSON ICELYN 

PEARSON VALENTINE 

PEARSON VALENTINE 

PERRY IVAN 

PHILLIPS NICOLE LAWSON 

PLUMMER ROY 

POWELL-GRANT WINSOME 

ROBERTS TELECIA 

ROBERTS RANDY 

SHAW KEITH 

SMITH WILBERT

SMITH WILBERT

SMITH CURTIS 

STAINROD GEORGE 

STERLING DENNIS 

STEWART IONE 

STOKES DUDLEY 

THOMAS VERNAL 

THOMPSON JAMES

TODD GARY

WAITE-BLACK LEONIE 

WALCOTT SONIA

WELLINGTON NENA 

WHITE DOREEN

 

 

WHITMORE VELDA

WHITTINGHAM JANET

WILKINS WYARTH 

WILLIAMS RUBY 

WILLIAMS LEONE 

WILLIAMS KEITH 

WOOLERRY LEBERT 

WRIGHT JACQUELINE 

WRIGHT YVONNE
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  

TO THE REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVES AND FRIENDLY SOCIETIES 

RE: GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED 

(A SOCIETY REGISTERED UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES ACT)  

 
Opinion 
 

We have audited the financial statements of Gateway Co-operative Credit Union (2017) Limited ("the Credit 

Union") which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st December 2020, the statement of 

comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

Credit Union as at 31st December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Co-

operative Societies Act. 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Credit Union, in accordance with the International 

Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matter 

 

How the matter was addressed during the 

audit 

Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') on Financial Assets Our procedures in this area includes the 

following: 
 

IFRS 9 was implemented  by the Credit Union on January  

1, 2018. The adopted standard is new and complex and 

requires the Credit Union to recognize expected credit 

losses ('ECL') on financial assets, the determination of 

which is highly subjective and requires management to 

make significant judgment and estimates.  

 

The key areas requiring greater management judgment 

include the identification of significant increase in credit 

risk ('SICR’), the determination of probabilities of default, 

loss given default, exposure at default and the implication 

of forward-looking information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

▪ Obtaining an understanding  of the models 

used by the Credit Union for the calculation 

of expected credit losses including 

governance over the determination of key 

judgments. 

 

▪ Testing the design and operating 

effectiveness of the key controls over the 

completeness and accuracy of the key 

data inputs into IFRS 9 impairment models 

for investments. 

 
▪ Testing the completeness and accuracy of 

the data used in the models of the 

underlying accounting records based on a 

sample basis. 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  

TO THE REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVES AND FRIENDLY SOCIETIES 

RE: GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED 

(A SOCIETY REGISTERED UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES ACT) 

 

 

Key Audit Matter 
 

How the matter was addressed during the 

audit 

Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') on Financial Assets Our procedures in this area includes the 

following: 

 

Significant management judgement is used in determining 

the appropriate variables and assumptions used in the 

ECL computations, which increase the risk of material 

misstatement. 

 

We therefore determined that impairment on loans 

receivable and investment securities has a high degree of 

estimated uncertainty. 

 

In addition, disclosure regarding the Credit Union's 

application of IFRS 9 are key to understanding the 

change from IAS 39 as well as explaining the key 

judgments and material inputs to the IFRS 9 ECL results. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

▪ Evaluation of the appropriateness of  the 

Credit Union's impairment methodology 

including (SICR) criteria presented. 

 

▪ Assessment of the assumptions for 

probability of default, loss given default and 

exposure at default. 

 
▪ Assessment of the adequacy of the 

disclosure of the key assumption and 

judgments as well as the details of 

transition adjustment for compliance with 

IFRS 9. 

 
 

Other Information 

 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 

in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual 

Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other 

information, we are required to report that matter to those charged with governance. 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  

TO THE REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVES AND FRIENDLY SOCIETIES 

RE: GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED 

(A SOCIETY REGISTERED UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES ACT) 

 

 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Co-operative Societies Act, and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Credit Union’s ability to 

continue as a going concern,  disclosing,  as applicable,  matters  related  to going  concern  and using the 

going concern  basis  of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Credit Union or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Credit Union’s financial reporting process. 

 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

▪ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error,  design  and  perform  audit  procedures  responsive  to  those  risks,  and  obtain  

audit  evidence  that  is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 
 

▪ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Credit Union's internal control. 
 
 
 



 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

Page 1c 
 
 

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS  

TO THE REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVES AND FRIENDLY SOCIETIES 

RE: GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED 

(A SOCIETY REGISTERED UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES ACT) 

 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d) 
 
 

▪ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

▪ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Credit Union's ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Credit 

Union to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

▪ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

▪ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Credit Union 

to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 

supervision, and performance of the audit of the financial statements of the Credit Union of which 

we are the independent auditors. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 

scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 

identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 
 
 

We  also  provide  those  charged  with  governance  with  a  statement  that  we  have  complied  with  

relevant  ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 
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TO THE REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVES AND FRIENDLY SOCIETIES 

RE: GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED 

(A SOCIETY REGISTERED UNDER THE CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES ACT) 

 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d) 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 
Report on Additional Matters as Required by the Co-operative Societies Act 

 
We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our opinion, proper accounting records have been maintained, so 

far as appears from our examination of those records, and the financial statements, which are in agreement 

therewith, given the information required by the Co-operatives Societies Act, in the manner required. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Crowe Horwath Jamaica 

 
 
 
47-49 Trinidad Terrace 
Kingston 5 
Jamaica 
 
May 19, 2021 
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

2020 2019

Notes $ $

ASSETS:

EARNING ASSETS:

Liquid Assets 5 1,059,962,208          1,376,197,715         

Loans to Members after Provision

      for Impairment 6 6,188,187,737          5,535,525,423         

Financial Investments 8 1,034,027,507          699,652,665            

Total Earning Assets 8,282,177,452          7,611,375,803         

NON-EARNING ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 115,951,096             95,214,215              

Inventories 3,424,506                 5,568,282                

Other Receivables & Prepayments 10 64,686,758               54,069,367              

Intangible Assets 11 54,673,379               6,818,827                

Right-of-Use-Assets 12 9,988,590                 -                           

Property, Plant and Equipment 13 407,636,013             552,338,919            

Retirement Benefit Asset 14 63,447,000               58,708,000              

Total Non-Earning Assets 719,807,342             772,717,610            

TOTAL  ASSETS 9,001,984,794          8,384,093,413         
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

2020 2019

Notes $ $

INTEREST INCOME:

Loans to Members 22 645,765,098       631,963,934            

Liquid Assets & Financial Investments 72,847,272         79,643,410              

718,612,370       711,607,344            

INTEREST EXPENSE:

Interest Expense on Members' Voluntary Shares 51,333,333         65,168,168              

81,068,333         70,262,557              

23 132,401,666       135,430,725            

25 3,962,104           3,774,104                

136,363,770       139,204,829            

NET INTEREST INCOME 582,248,600       572,402,515            

Net Movement in Provision for Loan Impairment 77,183,238         21,000,000              

(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Investment Impairment (988,301)             499,538                   

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER

PROVISION 506,053,663       550,902,977            

NON - INTEREST INCOME

Fee & Other Income 26 177,428,382       86,045,523              

GROSS INCOME 683,482,045       636,948,500            

 Less Operating Expenses 580,818,654       584,650,931            

NET INCOME 102,663,391       52,297,569              

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

      Items that will never be classified to Profit or Loss:

(16,885,168)        (9,725,273)               

Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Pension Plan 3,920,000           11,049,000              

(12,965,168)        1,323,727                

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 89,698,223         53,621,296              

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Savings Deposits

Other Financial Costs

 Unrealised Fair Value Gain -Available for sale investments 
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY- SUMMARY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Members' Non-

Permanent Share Institutional Institutional

Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $

Balance at 31st December 2018 139,047,323         258,779,402   748,506,561     1,146,333,286  

Total Comprehensive Income for the year after Honoraria -                        53,621,296     -                    53,621,296       

Transactions with owners

Transfer - 20% of net Income before  Honoraria -                        (10,459,514)    10,459,514       -                    

Amount subscribed-Shares 6,478,000             -                  -                    6,478,000         

Transfers/deduction from Permanent Shares (11,457,056)          -                  -                    (11,457,056)      

Transfer from Infrastructure Development to Permanent Reserve (21,000,000)    21,000,000       -                    

Appropriations from 2018 surplus: -                    

Dividend on members' shares -                        (11,157,043)    -                    (11,157,043)      

    Transfer/Distribution of 2018 Surplus -                        (50,000,000)    50,000,000       -                    

    Transfer for Honoraria payment -                        (3,187,727)      -                    (3,187,727)        

Entrance Fees -                        -                  1,730,550         1,730,550         

Total transactions with owners (4,979,056)            (95,804,284)    83,190,064       (17,593,276)      (17,593,276)      

Balance at 31st December 2019 134,068,267         216,596,414   831,696,625     1,182,361,306  

Total Comprehensive Income for the year after Honoraria -                        89,698,223     -                    89,698,223       

Transactions with owners

 Transfer - 20% of net Income -                        (20,532,678)    20,532,678       -                    

Amount subscribed-Shares 5,348,000             -                  -                    5,348,000         

Transfers/deduction from Permanent Shares (629,766)               -                  -                    (629,766)           

Dividend on members' shares -                        (7,809,963)      -                    (7,809,963)        

    Transfer/Distribution of 2019 Surplus -                        (44,000,000)    44,000,000       -                    

    Transfer for Honoraria payment -                        (3,331,418)      -                    (3,331,418)        

Entrance Fees -                        -                  1,276,667         1,276,667         

Total transactions with owners 4,718,234             (75,674,059)    65,809,345       (5,146,480)        

-                    
Balance at 31st December 2020 138,786,501         230,620,578   897,505,970     1,266,913,049  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Investment Retirement Share Fair Infrastructure

Property Revaluation Benefit General Transfer Value Accumulated Development 

Reserves Reserve Asset Reserve Reserve Fund Reserve Surplus Reserve Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Balance as at 31st December 2018 75,056,663          -                       46,258,000      576,428        2,000,000     34,195,145     79,693,166         21,000,000     258,779,402       

Net Income after Honoraria -                       -                       -                   -               -               -                 52,297,569         -                 52,297,569         

Other Comprehensive Income

Minimum Business Tax -                       -                       -                   -               -               -                 -                      -                 -                      

-                       -                       -                   -               -               (9,725,273)      -                      -                 (9,725,273)          

Re-Measurement of Pension Asset -                       -                       -                   -               -               -                 11,049,000         -                 11,049,000         

Total comprehensive income for the year -                       -                       -                   -               -               (9,725,273)      63,346,569         -                 53,621,296         

Transaction with owners

-                       -                   -               -               -                 (10,459,514)        -                 (10,459,514)        

Appropriations from 2018 surplus: -                      

Dividend on members' shares -                       -                   -               -               -                 (11,157,043)        -                 (11,157,043)        

Transfer to Permanent Reserve -                       -                   -               -               -                 (50,000,000)        (21,000,000)   (71,000,000)        

Transfer from Retained Earnings -                      -                      

Transfer from Loan Loss Reerve -                      -                      

Transfer for Honoraria payment -                       -                   -               -               -                 (3,187,727)          -                 (3,187,727)          

Transfer to IFRS 9 Reserve -                       -                   -               -               -                 -                      -                 -                      

 Honoraria -                       -                   -               -               -                 -                 -                      

Transfer from Loan Loss Reserve -                       -                   -               -               -                 -                      -                 -                      

Increase in Retirement Benefit Reserve -                       -                       12,450,000      -               -               -                 (12,450,000)        -                 -                      

Total transactions with owners -                       -                       12,450,000      -               -               -                 (87,254,284)        (21,000,000)   (95,804,284)        

75,056,663          -                      58,708,000      576,428       2,000,000     24,469,872     55,785,451         -                 216,596,414       

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY -NON-INSTITUTIONAL CAPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

 Unrealised fair value gains on available-for-sale financial 

assets 

 Transfer -20% of Net Income for the year 2019 before 

Honoraria 

Balance as at 31st December 2019
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(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Investment Retirement Share Fair Infrastructure

Property Revaluation Benefit General Transfer Value Accumulated Development 

Reserves Reserve Asset Reserve Reserve Fund Reserve Surplus Reserve Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

75,056,663          -                       58,708,000      576,428        2,000,000     24,469,872     55,785,451         -                 216,596,414       

-                       -                   -               -               -                 102,663,391       -                 102,663,391       

-                       -                   -               -               (16,885,168)    -                      -                 (16,885,168)        

Re-Measurement of Pension Asset -                       -                       -                   -               -               -                 3,920,000           -                 3,920,000           

Total comprehensive income for the year -                       -                       -                   -               -               (16,885,168)    106,583,391       -                 89,698,223         

-                       -                   -               -               -                 (20,532,678)        -                 (20,532,678)        

-                      

Dividend on members' shares -                       -                   -               -               -                 (7,809,963)          -                 (7,809,963)          

Transfer to Permanent Reserve -                       -                   -               -               -                 (44,000,000)        -                 (44,000,000)        

Transfer to Revaluation Reserve (75,056,663)         75,056,663          -                   -               -               -                 -                      -                 -                      

Transfer for Honoraria payment -                       -                   -               -               -                 (3,331,418)          -                 (3,331,418)          

Increase in Retirement Benefit Reserve -                       -                       4,739,000        -               -               -                 (4,739,000)          -                 -                      

(75,056,663)         75,056,663          4,739,000        -               -               -                 (80,413,059)        -                 (75,674,059)        

-                       75,056,663          63,447,000      576,428        2,000,000     7,584,704       81,955,783         -                 230,620,578       

Balance as at 31st December 2019

Balance as at 31st December 2020

Appropriations from 2019 surplus:

Transaction with owners

Total transactions with owners

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

Transfer -20% of Net Income for the year 2020

Net Income

Other Comprehensive Income

Unrealised fair value gains on available-for-sale financial 

assets

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY -NON-INSTITUTIONAL CAPITAL
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(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

Statutory Business 

& Legal Permanent Combination

Reserves Reserves Reserve Total

$ $ $ $

205,112,456       287,573,864   255,820,241       748,506,561     

Transfer of 20 % of Net Income for the Year before Honoraria 10,459,514         -                  -                      10,459,514       

Transfer/Distribution from 2018 Surplus -                      50,000,000     -                      50,000,000       

Transfer from Infrastructure Development 21,000,000     21,000,000       

Entrance Fees
1,730,550           -                  -                      1,730,550         

217,302,520       358,573,864   255,820,241       831,696,625     

Transfer of 20 % of Net Income for the Year 20,532,678         -                  -                      20,532,678       

Transfer/Distribution from 2019 Surplus -                      44,000,000     -                      44,000,000       

Entrance Fees 1,276,667           -                  -                      1,276,667         

Balance at 31st December 2020 239,111,865       402,573,864   255,820,241       897,505,970     

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - INSTITUTIONAL CAPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

Balance at 31st December 2019

Balance at 31st December 2018
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

2020 2019

$ $

Cash flows from Operating Activities

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 89,698,223            53,621,296            

Non- cash items included in income

Depreciation expense 23,398,502            23,956,734            

Amortisation Expense 6,600,384              2,741,327              

Gain on disposal of Fixed Assets (62,983,180)           339,739                 

Unrealised Fair Value (Gain)/Loss 16,885,168            9,725,273              

(4,739,000)             (12,450,000)           

Provision for loan impairment 77,183,238            21,000,000            

Provision for Investment impairment -                         -                         

146,043,335          98,934,369            

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Inventories 2,143,776              (2,419,503)             

Other Receivables & Prepayments (10,617,391)           (20,920,217)           

Accounts & Other Payables & Accrual 66,476,878            5,587,875              

Accrued Interest on members' voluntary shares (27,438,721)           (2,252,309)             

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 176,607,877          78,930,215            

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment (70,337,828)           (15,484,273)           

Additions to Intangible Assets (54,911,825)           (4,077,499)             

Additions to Operating Lease Right of use Assets (13,246,266)           -                         

Proceeds disposal of property, plant and equipment 257,883,088          9,700                     

Proceeds disposal of Intangible Assets 456,889                 -                         

Financial investments (351,260,010)         485,373,348          

Loans to members (729,845,552)         (696,281,079)         

(961,261,504)         (230,459,803)         

Voluntary share capital 237,191,163          437,549,247          

Permanent shares subscription 5,348,000              6,478,000              

Transfers/deduction from Permanent Share Account (629,766)                (11,457,056)           

Savings Deposits                246,741,416          333,724,677          

Entrance Fee 1,276,667              1,730,550              

Dividend on permanent shares (7,809,963)             (11,157,043)           

Transfer for Honorarium Payments (3,331,418)             (3,187,727)             

Operating Lease Liabilities 10,368,902            -                         

Borrowing (External Credit) -                         (79,061,855)           

Bank overdraft -                         (11,253,669)           

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 489,155,001          663,365,124          

Increase in Liquid Assets (295,498,626)         511,835,536          

 Liquid Assets at Beginning of Year 1,471,411,930       959,576,394          

 Liquid Assets at End of Year 1,175,913,304       1,471,411,930       

 Liquid  Assets - Earning 1,059,962,208       1,376,197,715       

 Liquid  Assets - Non - Earning 115,951,096          95,214,215            

1,175,913,304       1,471,411,930       

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Pension (income)/expense

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
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(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

1. Identification:

The principal activities of the Credit Union include but are not limited to:-

(a)

(b)

(c)

2. Adoption of Standards, Interpretation and Amendments:

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

Gateway Co-operative Credit Union (2017) Limited (the Credit Union) is incorporated under the laws of Jamaica and is registered under the

Co-operative Societies Act. The Credit Union, which is domiciled in Jamaica, has its registered office at 20 Church Street, Montego Bay,

and its operations are concentrated in the parish of St. James and Hanover.

the promotion of thrift amongst its members;

An individual ceasing to be a member of the Credit Union, shall be entitled to a redemption of any amount held as Permanent Shares.

Permanent Shares are redeemable upon sale, transfer or repurchase. To facilitate this, the Credit Union has established a Share Transfer

Fund Account.

the provision of loans to members exclusively for provident and productive purposes; and

to receive the savings of its members, either as payment on shares, or as deposits.

The Credit Union is a member of the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited ("the League") which provides financial services,

technical support and sets prudential standards for the credit union movement. The Credit Union is exempt from Income Tax under Section

59 (1) of the Co-operative Societies Act and Section 12 of the Income Tax Act.

Membership in the Credit Union is obtained by holding a minimum of $2,000 in permanent shares and a minimum of $500 in voluntary

shares. Individual membership may not exceed 20% of the Credit Union's capital. Membership is limited to individuals and their relatives who

reside, work, conduct business, study or who were born in the County of Cornwall.

Monies paid for Permanent Shares may not be withdrawn in whole or in part and may not be pledged to secure credit facilities with the Credit

Union.

The International Accounting Standards Boards (IASB) issued certain new standards and interpretations as well as amendments to

existing standards, which became effective during the year under review. The Credit Union's management has assessed the relevance

of these new standards, interpretations and amendments and has adopted and applied in these financial statements, those standards

which are considered relevant to its operations. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

2. Adoption of Standards, Interpretation and Amendments (Cont'd):

a) Standards and Interpretations in respect of published standards that are in effect:

•

•

•

•

•

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

These affected the financial statements for accounting periods beginning on or after the first day of the months stated. The adoption of

these Standards and amendments did not have a material impact on the Credit Union's financial statements.

add guidance and illustrative examples to help entities assess whether a substantive process has been acquired;

remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes and continuing to

produce outputs; and

add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a

business.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) (Effective January 2020)

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) (Effective January 2020)

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (Effective January 2020)

Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) (Effect January 2020)

The amendments in Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) clarify the definition of ‘material’ and to align the definition

used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards.

Together with the revised Conceptual Framework published in March 2018, the IASB also issued Amendments to References to the

Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. The document contains amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS

34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32. Not all amendments, however update those pronouncements

with regard to references to and quotes from the framework so that they refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some

pronouncements are only updated to indicate which version of the framework they are referencing to (the IASC framework adopted by

the IASB in 2001, the IASB framework of 2010, or the new revised framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions in the standard have

not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) clarify that entities would continue to 

apply certain hedge accounting requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows 

from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

The amendments in Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) are changes to Appendix A, Defined terms, the application

guidance, and the illustrative examples of IFRS 3 only. They: 

clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a

substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;

narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and services provided to customers and by removing the

reference to an ability to reduce costs;
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

2. Adoption of Standards, Interpretation and Amendments (Cont'd):

b) Standards and interpretations which are considered relevant to the Credit Union were issued but not yet effective:

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) (Effect January 2022)

•

•

•

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)(Effect January 2022):

•

•

•

Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations have been issued which are not yet effective for the current year and

which the company has not early-adopted. The company has assessed the relevance of all the new standards, amendments

and interpretations with respect to the company’s operations and has determined that the following are likely to have an effect on the

company's financial statements:

Entities should apply the amendments to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the

annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Comparatives are not restated.

updates IFRS 3, so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework  instead of the 1989 Framework ;

The changes in Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3):

adds to IFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) (Effect January 2022)

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early application is permitted if an entity also

applies all other updated references (published together with the updated Conceptual Framework ) at the same time or earlier.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments in Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)  affect only the presentation of

liabilities in the statement of financial position — not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability income or expenses, or the

information that entities disclose about those items. They:

clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the

reporting period and align the wording in all affected paragraphs to refer to the "right" to defer settlement by at least twelve months

and make explicit that only rights in place "at the end of the reporting period" should affect the classification of a liability;

clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability;

and

make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and are to be applied retrospectively.

Earlier application is permitted.

The changes in Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)  specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract

comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling

that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an

example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

adds to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies

IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework) to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

2. Adoption of Standards, Interpretation and Amendments (Cont'd):

b)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Effect January 2022)

IAS 41 Agriculture-Taxation in fair value measurements (Effect January 2022)

Standards and interpretations which are considered relevant to the Credit Union were issued but not yet effective (Cont'd):

Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities. The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it

applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes

only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the

lender on the other’s behalf.

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair

value of a biological asset using a present value technique. This will ensure consistency with the requirements in IFRS 13.

The amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, and IAS 41 are all effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early

application is permitted.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020  makes amendments to the following standards:

These affect financial statements for accounting periods beginning on or after the first day of the month stated. The company is

assessing the impact these amendments will have on its financial statements.

The amendments in Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) prohibits deducting from

the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the

proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early application is permitted. An entity applies

the amendments retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary

for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in

the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) (Effect January 2022):

The IASB has issued 'Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020'. The pronouncement contains amendments to four

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as result of the IASB's annual improvements project.

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Subsidiary as a first-time adopter) (Effect January

2022)

The amendment permits a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the

amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRSs.
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies:

a) Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation -

b) Use of Estimates and Judgements -

Critical Accounting Estimate and judgement applied

i) Classification of Financial Asset

ii) Impairment of Financial Assets

Risk of Estimation uncertainty

iii) Measurement of Expected Credit allowance/provision under IFRS 9

The measurement of expected credit allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI is an area that requires

the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. That is the

likelihood of members defaulting and the resulting loss).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirement for measuring expected credit losses, 

as follow;- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and their

interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and comply with the requirements of the Co-operative

Societies Act. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment property,

certain available-for-sale financial investments and other financial investments at fair value. These financial statements are expressed in

Jamaican Dollars which is the functional currency of the Credit Union.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Credit Union's policies. Although these estimates are based on

management's best knowledge of historical experience, factors including expectations of future events and actions, actual results could

differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires directors and

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

These estimates are based on historical experience and directors and management's best knowledge of current events and actions and

are reviewed on an on-going basis.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

- Selecting appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of expected credit losses;

The assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the

financial assets are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal payment amount outstanding requires management to

make certain judgments on its business operations.

Establishing the criteria of determining whether credit risk of the financial assets has increase significantly since initial recognition ,

determining the methodology for incorporating forward-looking information into the measurement of expected credit losses (ECL)

and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL requires significant judgement.
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

iii) Measurement of Expected Credit allowance/provision under IFRS 9 (Cont'd)

c) Loans to Members and provisions for Loan Impairment - 

a.

b.

Loans are placed in Stage 1 at origination and remains in this stage provided;

The loans are due to mature in 12 months of the reporting date and are not in a state of default. 

Stage 2

Loans are transitioned to Stage 2 when there is evidence that such loans have experienced a significant increase in credit risk. 

Loans to members are held solely for the collection of principal and interest in accordance with the contractual arrangement between the

credit union and the borrower. Therefore, loans are classified under the hold to collect business model and are measured at amortized

cost. 

The credit union assigns an initial risk rating to each loan at the date of disbursement. The risk rating is determined by the credit score

assigned and categorised in the recognised credit score bands.

 Loan Staging 

Stage 3

Loans are transitioned into Stage 3 if there is evidence that these loans are impaired or are at a default stage. Loans that are past due

for a period of 90 days or more are deemed to have defaulted. 

Stage 1

By way of disclosure, the credit union estimates and reports the ECL on a stage by stage basis. 

The loans have not experience a significant increase in credit risk. 

Additionally, the credit union is required to update the amount of ECLs recognised at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

of the loan portfolio.  

- Establishing of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product or market and associated

expected credit loss;

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purpose of measuring expected credit losses.

Loans are recognized when cash is advanced to borrowers. They are initially recorded at cost, which is the cash given to originate the

loan including any transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The Credit Union, under the IFRS 9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) impairment framework, recognises ECLs on loans, taking into account

past events, current conditions and forecast information. In this regard, the Credit Union determines the economic variables that are

likely to influence the borrowers’ ability to meet their loan obligations in the future and incorporate such forward looking economic

information in the overall estimation of the expected credit loss. 
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

(d) Liquid Assets

(e) Financial Investments-

●

 ● 

●

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, liquid assets include cash and cash equivalents which consist of cash on hand and

current accounts held at banks and deposits held under 6 months with banks and other financial institutions.

At initial recognition, the Credit Union measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus or minus (in the case of a financial asset not at

fair value through profit or loss transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial

asset; such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in

profit or loss.

Immediately after recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost

and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an

asset is newly originated.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on the credit union's business model for managing the asset;

and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the credit union classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement categories:

From 1st January 2018, the Credit Union has applied IFRS 9 and classified its financial assets as either Fair value through profit or loss

(FVPL); Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or Amortised cost.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through 

profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of

a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented in the profit or loss statement within. 'Net trading income' in the

period in which it arises, unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for trading,

in which case they are presented separately in 'Net investment income'. Interest income from these financial assets is included in

'Interest income' using the effective interest method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for

selling the assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at

FVTPL are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of

principal and interest ('SPPI') and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these

assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured as described at (vi). Interest income from these

financial assets is included in '  Interest and similar income' using the effective interest method.
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

f)

(g) Provisions 

General

IFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

- other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk not  increased significantly.

Business Model: the business model reflects how the Credit Union manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether

the credit union's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows

and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then

the financial assets are classified as part of 'other' business model and measured at FVTPL.

At each reporting date, the credit union assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired (referred to a

Stage 3 financial assets).

Loss allowances are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL except for the following are measured as a 12-month  ECL:

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-

financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement". IFRS 9 bring fundamental

changes to the accounting of financial assets and to certain aspects of the accounting for financial liabilities.

- debt investment securities  that are low in risk

Impairment of Financial Assets

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events of a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after

the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is recognised is referred to as Stage 1 financial instrument.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability

for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the date of the statement of financial position.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) represents the amount the Credit Union is likely to lose in the event of a default.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument. Financial

Instruments for which lifetime ECL is recognised and is not credit-impaired is referred to Stage 2 financial instruments.

Provisions are recognized when the Credit Union has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, if it is probable

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount

of the obligation can be made.
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

(g) Provisions -(Cont'd)

As permitted by transitional provisions of IFRS 9, any adjustments to the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities at the date of

transition were recognized in the opening retained earning and other reserves of the current period.

At each reporting date, the Credit Union is required to update the amount of ECLs recognised to reflect changes in credit risk of the loan

portfolio.

At least once annually, the credit union re-assesses the risk ratings bands and carries out the necessary adjustments in order to ensure

that the ratings bands are consistent with prevailing trends and conditions.

In recognizing Expected Credit Loss (ECL) as prescribed by IFRS 9, the Credit Union took into account past events, current conditions

and forecast information. The Credit Union determined the economic variables that are likely to influence the borrowers ability to meet

their loan obligation in the future and incorporate such forward looking economic information in the overall estimation of the expected

credit loss. 
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

h) Investment  Property-

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents - 

j) Inventories - 

k)

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with

less than three (3) months maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-

term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three (3) months or less, not held to satisfy League requirements, net of bank

overdraft.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being determined on the first-in first-out (FIFO) basis. Net

realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less selling expenses.

Accounts Receivable - 

Accounts receivable are carried at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on all outstanding

amounts at year end. Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are identified.

Investment Property was held for long-term rental yields, for capital appreciation or both, and was not occupied by the Credit Union.

Investment property use to comprise of an office building which was leased under an operating lease agreement and land held for

capital appreciation.

The office building was partially occupied by the credit union, with the remainder being leased for rental income or capital appreciation.

The portion that was owner-occupied was accounted for under IAS 16, and the portion that was leased or for capital appreciation or both

was treated as investment property under IAS 40. The Credit Union considered the owner-occupied portion as being significant since

fifty percent (50%) of the property was leased to earn rental income or held for capital appreciation. To determine the percentage of the

portions, the Credit Union used the size of the property measured in square meters.

Recognition of investment property took place only when it was probable that the future economic benefits that was associated with the

investment property would flow to the entity and the cost could be measured reliable. This was usually when all risks were transferred.

Investment property was treated as a long-term investment and was carried at initial cost including transaction costs. The carrying

amount included the cost of replacing parts of the investment property at the time the cost was incurred once the recognition criteria

were met; and excluded the cost of day-to-day servicing of the investment property. Subsequent to the initial recognition, investment

property was stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the date  of the statement of financial position.
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

l) Property, Plant and Equipment - 

Buildings 2.5%

Leasehold Improvements 50%

Machinery and Office Equipment 10%

Computer Equipment 20% - 33.33%

Furniture & Fixtures 10%

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Land is not depreciated.

m)

n) Borrowing Costs-

Land is stated at historical costs. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment if any. The Credit Union has elected to apply depreciation on other assets on the straight-line basis at annual rates

estimated to write off the assets over their expected useful lives as follows:

Gains or losses on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are determined by their carrying amount and are taken into account in

determining operating surplus.

Intangible Assets - 

Intangible Assets comprise separately identifiable intangible items arising from computer software licenses and programmes.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the

Credit Union and that qualify for recognition are recognised as intangible assets. Intangible assets are recognised at cost. Intangible

assets with a definite useful life are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful economic life, which does not

exceed three years.

Property, plant and equipment are periodically reviewed for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the

asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. No property, plant and equipment were impaired as at 31st December 2020 and 

2019.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Credit Union and the cost can be reliably measured.

Repairs and renewals are charged to net surplus in the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost

using the effective yield method. Any difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption value is recognised

in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset form part of the cost of

that asset and, therefore, have been capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

o) Retirement Benefits -

i) Pension Obligations

ii) Leave accrual

iii) Profit Sharing and Bonus Plans

p) Expenses

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position as asset or liability in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the

difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date and the fair value of plan assets. The

defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value

of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates on

Government of Jamaica securities which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation.

Service costs are recognised in the profit or loss as a part of staff costs, and include current and past service costs as well as gains

or losses on curtailments, benefit changes and settlements.

Net interest expense/(income) is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of staff costs, and is calculated by

applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation (asset), at the beginning of the annual reporting period, to

the balance of the net defined benefit obligation (asset) and the fair value of plan assets.

Actuarial gains and losses, arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, are charged or credited to

equity, through other comprehensive income, in the period in which they arise.

The Credit Union's vacation leave policy allows unused vacation leave to be carried forward yearly. All outstanding leave is

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period to which it relates.

The Credit Union recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into

consideration the net surplus attributable to the Credit Union's members after certain adjustments. The Credit Union recognises a

provision where contractually obliged or where there is past practice that has created  a constructive obligation.

Expenses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the accrual basis.

The Credit Union participates in a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. The pension plan is generally funded by payments

from employees and the Credit Union, taking into account the recommendation of independent qualified actuaries. A defined benefit

plan is a pension plan that defines the amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually as a function of one or more factors such

as age, years of service and compensation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

q) Other Assets-

r)

s) Members' Voluntary Shares - 

t) Accounts Payables - 

u) Provisions -

v) Members' Permanent Share Capital - 

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for

annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the date of the statement of financial position.

Member's permanent share capital represents shares paid up in cash and form part of the risk capital of the Credit Union. Members'

share capital may be redeemable subject to the sale, transfer or repurchase of such shares.

Dividends on members' permanent share capital are transferred to members' voluntary share accounts (net of withholding tax), in

accordance with the Credit Union's rules, in the period in which they are approved by the Credit Union's members.

Financial Liabilities - 

The Credit Union's financial liabilities primarily comprise members' deposits, member's voluntary shares, payables and bank overdraft.

These are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Under the International Financial Reporting Standards, Voluntary shares in the Credit Union can no longer be regarded as share capital

but should be treated as a liability. Members' voluntary shares represent withdrawable deposit holdings of the Credit Union's members to

facilitate eligibility for loans and other benefits. Interest paid on these shares is classified as an expense in net surplus and is paid at a

rate that is determined from time to time by the Board of Directors, subject to the profitability of the Credit Union.

Accounts payable are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

Provisions are recognized when the Credit Union has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, if it is probable

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount

of the obligation can be made.

Receivables are carried at original amounts less provisions for bad debt and impairment losses. A provision for bad debt is established

when there is objective evidence that the Credit Union will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the

receivables. The amount of any provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the expected recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

w)

x) Statutory Reserves -

y) Revenue Recognition -

z) Foreign Currency Translation -

Functional and presentation currency

aa) Interest Income and Expense

Fees and other Income 

Fees and other income are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided. Loan commitment fees for

loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective

interest rate on the loans.

Items included in the financial statements of the Credit Union are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the Credit Union operates ('the functional currency'). The Credit Union's primary economic environment is Jamaica, and as such,

its functional and presentation currency is Jamaican dollars.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are converted into the functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the

transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of

the statement of financial position. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions at rates different from those

at the dates of the transactions and unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses on unsettled foreign currency monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within 'interest income' and 'interest expense' in 

the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

Institutional Capital -

Institutional Capital includes a statutory reserve fund, as well as various other reserves, established from time to time which, in the

opinion of the directors are necessary to support the operations of the Credit Union and, thereby, protect the interests of the members.

These reserves are not available for distribution to members.

The Co-operative Societies Act provides that at least twenty percent (20%) of the annual net income of the Credit Union should be

carried to a Statutory Reserve Fund which is not available for distribution to its members..
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3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

aa) Interest Income and Expense (cont'd)

ab) League fees and stabilisation dues - 

ac) Related Party Balances and Transactions -

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person: 

(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity; 

(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or 

(iii)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others). 

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member). 

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity. 

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related to

the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting

entity. 

The effective interest rate is the method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the

interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Credit Union estimates cash flows

considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit

losses. The calculation include all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest

rate, transactions costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is

recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

JCCUL has fixed the rate of league fees at 0.20% (2019 - 0.20%) of total assets less adjustment for certain fair value and reserve items.

Stabilisation dues are fixed at a rate of 0.10% (2019 - 0.15%) of total savings.

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements (referred to in IAS 24, Related 

Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”). 

is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity  or of a parent of the reporting entity. 

 An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies: 
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3. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd):

ac) Related Party Balances and Transactions Cont'd:

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ad) Business Combinations

ae) Leases

i.

ii.

Subsequent Measurement

- 2 - 3 years

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management:

i) Risk, Compliance and Legal Services Manager

ii) Finance Committee

A right-of-use asset that represents the right of the entity to use the asset during the lease term. The right-of- use asset is initially

measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, plus any lease payments made to the lessor before the lease commencement

date, plus any indirect cost incurred, minus any lease incentives received.

A lease liability that reocognises the obligation of the entity to the Lessor. The lease liability is initially measured at the present

value of the lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease. Where there is not discount rate implicit in the lease, the

entity will utilise the incremental borrowing rate.

Following the commencement or initial recognition of the lease, the entity measures the right-of-use asset at cost, minus accumulated

depreciation, accumulated impairment and adjustment for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short term leases and all leases at a low-value are recognised on a straight line basis as an expense in the

profit or loss. The Credit Union applies the exemption for low-value assets on a lease by lease basis.

Lease Liability denominated in United States Dollars are revalued at the end of each reporting period.

Right-of-use for Office Building

The entity has recognised all leases, except for short-term leases (tenure of less than 12 months) and leases of low value;

The Risk and Compliance Officer is responsible for developing and implementing risk management policies, programs and standards to

mitigate all risks affecting the Credit Union and ensuring the Credit Union's compliance with relevant laws and regulators.

The role of the Finance Committee includes monitoring and assessing risk and compliance within the organization. This involves

reviewing current and prospective capital levels, liquidity positions and interest rate risk measurements. The Finance Committee also

monitors alternative funding sources for the Credit Union, and monitors capital and asset/liability management strategies and tactics.

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity). 

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity

or to the parent of the reporting entity.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a price is

charged.

The Credit Union's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Credit Union's risk management activities involve the analysis,

evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial business, and the

operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Credit Union's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance

between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Credit Union's financial performance.

The Credit Union's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and

to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Credit Union regularly reviews its

risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Credit Union's risk, management framework. The

Board has established committees, departments and positions for managing and monitoring risks, as follows:

The Credit Union uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred on the

merger of entities is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the credit union.

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired; and contingent liabilities assumed in a

business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.  

In business combinations involving more than two parties, one of the previously existing entities is normally deemed to be the acquirer

uses the principles outlined in IFRS 3  - Business Combinations , to account for the net assets of the deemed acquired.

Right of use Asset

Right of use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The

amortisation periods for operating leases recognised as right-of-use assets is as follow;

The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

iii)

iv)

v) Credit Committee

(a)

The Credit Committee monitors the overall credit administration and granting of loans. The Credit Union’s policy is that risk

management processes throughout the Credit Union are audited periodically by the Internal Audit function, which examines both the

adequacy of the procedures and the Credit Union’s compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all

assessments with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Supervisory Committee.

Monitoring and controlling risk is primarily performed based on limits established by the Credit Union. These limits reflect the business

strategy and market environment of the Credit Union as well as the level of risk that the Credit Union is willing to accept, with additional

emphasis on selected industries. In addition, the Credit Union’s policy is to measure and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in

relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities.

In addition, the League has established a Risk Management Unit for credit unions in Jamaica and the Credit Union participates in this

risk management initiative. They conduct seminars, draft policies and assist credit unions in identifying and managing risks.

The Credit Union is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest

rate and other price risk.

Credit risk

The Credit Union takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that its members or counterparties will cause a financial loss for the

Credit Union by failing to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Credit Union’s business;

management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending and investment

activities. There is also credit risk in financial instruments not included in the statement of financial position, such as loan commitments.

The Credit Union structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to a single

counterparty or related counterparties.

Accounting Department

This department is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Credit Union's assets and liabilities and the overall financial

structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Credit Union.

Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Credit Union's risk management policies and

procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Credit Union. The

Supervisory Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of

risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Supervisory Committee.
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(a) Credit risk (cont'd)

i) Loans

ii) Investments

iii) Collateral and other credit enhancement

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

·   Bills of sale on motor vehicles, furniture and appliances

·   Mortgages over real estate

·   Life insurance policies

·  Liens on members' shares and deposits maintained with the Credit Union

·   Hypothecated funds invested at other financial institutions

·   Co-maker account

Impaired Loans

Past Due but not Impaired Loans

Impairment

Impaired loans are loans for which the Credit Union determines that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest

due according to the contractual terms of the loan.

Impaired loans are loans for which the Credit Union determines that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest

due according to the contractual terms of the loan.

These are loans where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the Credit Union believes that impairment is not

appropriate on the basis of the level of security available or the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Credit Union.

Credit Review Process

The Credit Union has established a credit quality review process involving regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and other

counterparties to meet interest and capital repayment obligations.

The Credit Union assesses the probability of default of borrowers. Exposure to credit risk is managed in part by obtaining collateral,

and corporate and personal guarantees. Counterparty limits are established by the Board and are detailed in the Credit Union’s

loan policy document. These limits are subject to regular revision. The credit quality review process allows the Credit Union to

assess the potential loss as a result of the risk to which it is exposed and take corrective action.

The Credit Union limits its exposure to credit risk by investing mainly in liquid securities, with counterparties that have high credit

quality and in Government of Jamaica fixed rate benchmark investments. Accordingly, management does not expect any

counterparty  to  fail  to  meet  its obligations.

The amount of and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the members. Guidelines are

implemented regarding the acceptability of different types of collateral.

Management monitors the market value of collateral held, and requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying

agreement, during its review of the adequacy of the provision for credit losses.
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(a) Credit risk-Cont'd:

Credit Review Process (Cont'd)

Allowances for Impairment

Credit Risk Exposure

Maximum Exposure under IFRS 9

Loans:

2020 2019 2020 2019

$ $

Stage 1 (12- month ECL)      5,994,256,366   5,385,049,042 45,766,750           31,792,358           

Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL)          82,058,895      113,611,418 2,934,018             1,834,891             

Stage 3 (Lifetime ECL)         120,252,143        91,568,091 72,313,519           61,816,813           

Total 6,196,567,404    5,590,228,551  121,014,287         95,444,062           

     6,196,567,404 5,590,228,551  121,014,287         95,444,062           

Difference -                      -                   -                        -                        

The difference between the two amounts is dealt with as an additional provision through transfer from accumulated surplus to the loan

loss reserve in non-institutional capital.

 As per Expected 

Credit Loss  

(ECL) Report 

Expected Credit Loss

 As per General ledger 

The gross carrying amount of financial assets above represents the maximum exposure to credit risk on these assets.

Impairment (cont'd)

The League’s loan loss provisioning rules in (Note 7) focus more on credit-quality mapping of the respective delinquency periods to

corresponding pre-determined percentages. In contrast, impairment provisions described above are recognised for financial reporting

purposes only for losses that have been incurred at the date of the statement of financial position based on objective evidence of

impairment. Due to the different methodologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements

may differ from the amount determined from the League’s loan loss provisioning rules that are used for internal operational management

and the Credit Union’s internal provisioning method.

Prior to January 1, 2018, the Credit Union inline with IAS 39 established an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate

of incurred losses in its loan portfolio. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually

significant exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance established on a Credit Union basis in respect of losses that have been

incurred but have not been identified on loans subject to individual assessment for impairment. Additional regulatory allowance is made

based on the aging of the delinquency portfolio. This additional allowance is treated as an appropriation and taken to reserves.

Effective January 1, 2018, the Credit Union under IFRS 9 established an impairment framework that estimates excepted credit losses in

its loan portfolio. The Credit Union have a documented IFRS 9 policy in place to guide the recognition and derecognition process.

Management is responsible for the reassessment of credit risk of all loans to members annually or earlier if the needs arises and

determine whether there is a significant increase in the credit risk from the loan origination date to the date reporting date.

Gross Carrying Amount
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(a) Credit risk-Cont'd:

Credit risk exposure-Cont'd:

Maximum Exposure under IFRS 9-Cont'd

2020 2019

$ $

71450090Loan Commitments          167,430,500          129,254,308 

(i)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

     5,385,049,042      113,611,418 91,568,091           5,590,228,551      

(437,647,465)      (17,040,476)     (68,556,255)          (523,244,196)        

Transfers between Stages 

Transfer from Stage 1 to 2 (55,044,967)        55,044,967       -                        -                        

Transfer from Stage 1 to 3 (94,826,992)        -                   94,826,992           -                        

Transfer from Stage 2 to 1 56,913,894         (56,913,894)     -                        -                        

Transfer from Stage 2 to 3 -                      (24,300,844)     24,300,844           -                        

Transfer from Stage 3 to 1 23,685,334         -                   (23,685,334)          -                        

Transfer from Stage 3 to 2 -                      586,369            (586,369)               -                        

New Financial Assets originated 1,116,127,520    11,071,354       2,384,176             1,129,583,049      

Loan Write offs -                      -                   -                        -                        

5,994,256,366    82,058,895       120,252,143         6,196,567,404      

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

Expected Credit Loss as at January 1, 2020          31,792,358          1,834,891 61,816,813           95,444,062           

Transfers between Stages 

Transfer from Stage 1 to 2 (396,638)             396,638            -                        -                        

Transfer from Stage 1 to 3 (966,537)             -                   966,537                -                        

Transfer from Stage 2 to 1 730,605              (730,605)          -                        -                        

Transfer from Stage 2 to 3 -                      (571,393)          571,393                -                        

Transfer from Stage 3 to 1 10,077,472         -                   (10,077,472)          -                        

Transfer from Stage 3 to 2 -                      533,596            (533,596)               -                        

ECL on New Financial Asset originated 7,133,725           710,686            2,138,380             9,982,791             

(2,604,235)          760,204            17,431,465           15,587,434           

Expected Credit Loss as at December 31,2020 45,766,750         2,934,018         72,313,519           121,014,287         

For items on the statement of financial position, the exposures are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the statement of

financial position.

Total

Total

Gross carrying amount on Loans as at January 1, 

2020

Gross Carrying Amount on Loans as at December 

31, 2020

Financial Assets derecognized during the period 

other than write offs

For items not on the statement of financial position, see below representing a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Credit

Union at 31st December 2020 and 2019, without accounting for any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Changes in Credit quality since initial recognition:

Net movement due to Asset derecognition and 

changes PD/LGDs/EADs factors
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(a) Credit risk-Cont'd:

Credit risk exposure-Cont'd:

(i) Credit quality of loans is summarised as follows:

2020 2019

$ $

Neither past due nor impaired 5,816,880,242      4,108,711,207      

Past due but not impaired 329,687,163         1,407,042,461      

Impaired 50,000,000           74,474,883           

Gross Loan amounts 6,196,567,405      5,590,228,551      

Less: Provision for credit losses (121,014,287)        (95,444,062)          

Net Loans Receivable 6,075,553,118      5,494,784,489      

Further  information  on  the impairment allowance for loans is provided in (Note 7).

(i) Ageing analysis of  loans:

2020 2019

$ $

Less than 30 days          181,482,236        1,286,566,811 

31 to 60 days            49,135,752            80,460,329 

61 to 90 days            31,699,073            27,475,435 

More than 90 days 117,370,102                    12,539,886 

379,687,163                1,407,042,461 

There are no financial assets other than loans that are past due.

iii) Financial assets - individually impaired

2020 2019

$ $

Loans to members 50,000,000                      74,474,883 

iv) Loans

2020 2019

$ $

Agriculture 10,637,543           11,232,496           

Construction and real estate 1,549,875,304      1,230,718,785      

Debt refinancing and consolidation 468,200,975         381,030,677         

Transportation 375,459,602         277,709,945         

Personal 1,057,077,136      900,971,127         

Motor Vehicles 2,339,661,492      2,496,062,474      

Education 104,351,872         115,544,177         

Small Business 280,274,470         176,215,097         

Professional and other services 11,029,010           743,773                

6,196,567,404      5,590,228,551      

Less: Provision for credit losses (121,014,287)        (95,444,062)          

6,075,553,117      5,494,784,489      

Interest receivable 112,634,620         40,740,934           

6,188,187,737      5,535,525,423      

v) Renegotiated loans

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external management plans, modification and deferral

of payments. Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is reset to a normal status and managed together with

other similar accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of

management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous review (restructuring is most

commonly applied to term loans). As at 31st December 2020, there were three renegotiated loans totaling $6,516,745 (2019-

$2,186,272).

The following table summarises the credit exposure of the Credit Union for loans at their carrying amounts as categorised by

industry sectors:

Financial assets that are individually impaired before taking into consideration the cash flows from collateral held are as follows:

The fair value of collateral that the Credit Union held as security for individually impaired loans was $46,240,000.00 (2019 -

44,490,000.00).

There are no financial assets other than those listed above that were individually impaired.
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(a) Credit risk-Cont'd:

Credit risk exposure-Cont'd:

vi) Repossessed Collateral

The Credit Union obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as security, as follows:

Carrying Amount Carrying Amount

2020 2019

$ $

Motor vehicles 48,640,000           25,204,924           

Real estate -                           4,758,053             

48,640,000           29,962,977           

vii) Debt securities

2020 2019

$ $

Government of Jamaica 174,820,967         185,289,890         

Financial Institutions 1,219,957,945      1,237,274,195      

602,341,711         575,519,686         

9,074,411             9,437,426             

2,006,195,034      2,007,521,198      

(b)

Liquidity risk management process

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv) Optimising cash returns on investments;

(v)

(vi) Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements. The most important of these

is to maintain code one rating liquidity ratio according to the PEARLS-M standard; and

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day, week and month, respectively, as

these are key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the

financial liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the management

of the Credit Union. It is unusual for entities ever to be completely matched since business transacted is often of uncertain term and of

different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of loss.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature, are

important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Credit Union and its exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Credit Union is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they

fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay members and

fulfil commitments to lend.

The Credit Union’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the Credit Union and monitored by the Finance Committee,

includes:

Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the

availability of high grade collateral, which could be used to secure funding if required;

Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any

unforeseen interruption to cash flows;

Maintaining committed lines of credit;

Repossessed property and motor vehicles are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding

indebtedness.  The Credit Union does not occupy repossessed property for business use.

This disclosure provided in this note are based on the Credit Union's investment portfolio. The following table summaries the

categories of Credit Union's credit exposure for debt securities and their carrying amounts at year end:

Credit Union Fund Management Company Limited

Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(b) Liquidity risk - Cont'd:

Financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk

Within 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 No Specific Total

Months Months Years Years Maturity

$ $ $ $ $ $

32,182,516       591,946,531     1,333,751,000      1,251,701,000      806,884,372      4,016,465,419   

-                    -                    -                        -                       3,487,474,304   3,487,474,304   

Operating Lease Liabilities 953,263            3,235,518         6,180,121             10,368,902        

63,287,166       157,475,954     -                        -                       -                    220,763,120      

96,422,945       752,658,003     1,339,931,121      1,251,701,000      4,294,358,676   7,735,071,745   

141,026,402     446,208,810     4,607,865,935      2,185,328,606      797,941,213      8,178,370,966   

Within 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 No Specific Total

Months Months Years Years Maturity

$ $ $ $ $ $

125,627,315     578,695,210     1,023,651,397      1,004,839,305      1,036,910,776   3,769,724,003   

-                    -                    -                        -                       3,250,283,141   3,250,283,141   

-                    -                    -                        -                       -                    -                     

43,360,008       138,364,955     -                        -                       -                    181,724,963      

168,987,323     717,060,165     1,023,651,397      1,004,839,305      4,287,193,917   7,201,732,107   

270,590,788     699,088,490     4,101,627,193      1,788,772,786      846,992,486      7,707,071,743   
 Assets held for managing liquidity 

risk (contractual maturity dates) 

 Members' voluntary shares 

 External Credit 

The tables below present the cash flows payable and receivable by the Credit Union for financial liabilities and assets held at contractual maturity dates

for managing liquidity risk by remaining contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow (principal

and interest cash flows).

 As at 31st December 2020 

Members' saving deposits

 Members' voluntary shares 

 Total financial liabilities (contractual 

maturity dates) 

Members' saving deposits

 As at 31st December 2019 

 Assets held for managing liquidity 

risk (contractual maturity dates) 

 Non-interest bearing liabilities  Total financial liabilities (contractual 

maturity dates) 

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

 Non-interest bearing liabilities 
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4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(b) Liquidity risk - Cont'd:

Undrawn loan commitments, as discussed in Note 4(a), will expire in less than one year.

(c)

Foreign currency sensitivity

Change in Effect on Change in Effect on

Currency Net Currency Net

Rate Surplus Rate Surplus

2020 2020 2019 2019

% $ % $

Devaluation 6             6,451,920    4              4,301,280    

Revaluation 2             (2,150,640)   2              (1,075,320)   

Foreign Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange

rates. The Credit Union is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with respect to the US dollar. The statement

of financial position at 31st December 2020 includes aggregate foreign assets the equivalent of $45,275,362

(2019 - $67,119,555).

The Credit Union manages its foreign exchange risk by ensuring that the net exposure in foreign assets and

liabilities is kept to an acceptable level by monitoring currency positions. The Credit Union further manages this risk 

by holding foreign currency balances.

The following table indicates the currencies to which the Credit Union had significant exposure on its

monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The change in currency rate below represent

management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis represents

outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for the

percentage changes in foreign currency rates as indicated below. The sensitivity of the net surplus was as a

result of US dollar-denominated reverse repurchase agreements and financial investments. There would be no

impact on equity other than through net surplus.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Off-statement of financial position items

Market risk

The Credit Union is exposed to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk mainly arises from changes in foreign

currency exchange rates and interest rates. Market risk is monitored by the Accounting Department which carries

out research and monitor the price movement of financial assets.

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan commitments include cash and bank

balances, items in the course of collection, investment securities and other eligible bills, and loans and advances to

members. In the normal course of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable within one year

will be extended. In addition, debt securities and treasury and other bills have been pledged to secure liabilities.

The Credit Union is also able to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and accessing additional

funding sources from other financing institutions.

There has been no change to the Credit Union’s exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.



Page 34

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(c)

Within 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 No Specific Non-Interest 
Months Months Years Years Maturity Date Bearing Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

        Deposits                          -   -                      -                     -                     576,534,899           -                                576,534,899 

          36,496,424 90,195,100        -                     -                     -                          -                                126,691,524 

71,516,000          256,134,584      709,187,453      132,518,941      221,406,314                  1,390,763,292 

        154,648,598          99,879,126    3,885,474,703    2,048,185,310                             -                          -          6,188,187,737 

-                       -                      -                     -                     719,807,342           -                     719,807,342          

262,661,022        446,208,810      4,594,662,156   2,180,704,251   1,517,748,555        -                     9,001,984,794       

          32,182,516        591,946,531    1,333,751,000    1,251,701,000 806,884,372           -                            4,016,465,419 

-                       -                      -                     -                     3,487,474,304        -                     3,487,474,304       

Operating Lease Liabilities                953,263 3,235,518          6,180,121          -                     -                          -                     10,368,902            

63,287,166          157,475,954      -                     -                     -                          -                     220,763,120          

 Equity -                       -                      -                     -                     -                          1,266,913,049   1,266,913,049       

96,422,945          752,658,003      1,339,931,121   1,251,701,000   4,294,358,676        1,266,913,049   9,001,984,794       

        166,238,077      (306,449,193)    3,254,731,035        929,003,251        (2,776,610,121)   (1,266,913,049) -                         

 Total financial assets  

 Financial liabilities 

 Interest bearing liabilities 

 Members' voluntary shares 

 Total financial liabilities 

 Total Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap 

 Non-interest bearing liabilities 

 Reversed Repurchase agreements 

 Members' saving deposits 

 Non-earning assets 

 Financial investments 

 Loans to members after provision for impairment 

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

Floating rate instruments expose the Credit Union to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Credit Union to fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is managed through monitoring interest rate gaps and having pre-approved limits for re- pricing bands. The Credit Union’s policy is to monitor positions on a daily basis

and strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits. This is monitored by the Accounting Department.

The following tables summarise the Credit Union’s exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the Credit Union’s financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of 

contractual repricing or maturity dates.

2,018.00€                                                                                                                                                                                                       

 Earning Assets 

 Liquid assets 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Market risk -Cont'd

Interest rate risk

Financial Assets

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(c)

Within 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 No Specific Non Interest 

Months Months Years Years Maturity Date Bearing Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

        Deposits                        -   -                    -                        -                     550,458,695      -                              550,458,695 

       177,310,709 47,829,979       -                        -                     -                     -                              225,140,688 

21,556,950        520,641,466     329,000,000         132,518,791      296,533,791      -                           1,300,250,998 

           5,828,017      111,906,002       3,782,278,342     1,635,513,062                         -                           -         5,535,525,423 

-                     -                    -                        -                     772,717,610      -                     772,717,610         

204,695,676      680,377,447     4,111,278,342      1,768,031,852   1,619,710,096   -                     8,384,093,413      

       125,627,315      578,695,210       1,023,651,397     1,004,839,305 1,036,910,776   -                           3,769,724,003 

-                     -                    -                        -                     3,250,283,141   -                     3,250,283,141      

43,360,008        138,364,955     -                        -                     -                     -                     181,724,963         

-                     -                    -                        -                     -                     1,182,361,306    1,182,361,306      

168,987,323      717,060,165     1,023,651,397      1,004,839,305   4,287,193,917   1,182,361,306    8,384,093,413      

         35,708,353       (36,682,718)       3,087,626,945        763,192,547   (2,667,483,821)    (1,182,361,306)                           -   

Members' saving deposits

Interest bearing liabilities

Members' voluntary shares

The sensitivity of the net surplus is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on net income based on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial

liabilities. There is sensitivity with respect to other components of equity, as the Credit Union has fixed rate available-for-sale investments. The correlation of variables will have

a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on market risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be analysed on an individual

basis.

Total Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap

Equity

Market risk -Cont'd

Interest rate risk

2019

Earning Assets

Financial liabilities

Liquid assets

Total financial assets

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Financial Assets

Total financial liabilities

Reversed Repurchase agreements

Financial Investments

Loans to members after provision for 

Impairment

Non-earning assets

Non-interest bearing liabilities
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

(c)

Change in Effect on Change in Effect on

Basis Points Net Surplus Basis Points Net Surplus

2020 2020 2019 2019

$ $ $ $

-100 -              -100 -               

+100 -              +100 -               

Average effective yields by the earlier of the contractual re-pricing or maturity dates:

Within 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 Weighted

Months Months Years Years Average

% % % % %

1.90                -                -              -                 1.90             

2.40                4.15              -              -                 -               

7.00                4.58              6.06             11.75             5.50             

8.25                10.25            11.25           11.50             11.00           

                 1.55                3.05              4.00                 4.10 2.75             

-                  1.50              -              -                 -               

Within 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 Weighted

Months Months Years Years Average

% % % % %

1.80                -                -              -                 1.80             

1.15                1.35              -              -                 -               

1.55                4.25              6.30             11.75             5.50             

8.25                10.25            11.25           11.50             11.00           

                     -                     -                    -                       -                    -   

                 1.65                3.10              4.50                 4.10 2.75             

-                  1.75              -              -                 -               

(1) Yields are based on book values, net of allowances for credit losses and contractual interest rates. 

(2) Yields are based on contractual interest rates.

 Reversed Repurchase Agreements 

 Loans (1) 

 Interest bearing liabilities 

 Interest rate risk- Cont'd: 

 Interest rate sensitivity 

 Earning Assets 

 Liquid assets- 

 Financial Investments 

 Market risk -Cont'd 

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

         Deposits 

2020

 Loans (1) 

 Interest bearing liabilities 

 Members' deposits (2) 

 Deposits 

 Members' voluntary shares 

 Members' Deposits (2) 

 Members' Voluntary Shares 

2019

 Earning Assets 

 Liquid assets- 

 Reversed Repurchase Agreements 

 Financial Investments 
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

d) Operational risk:

(i)

(ii)

(iii) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions. 

(iv) Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.

(v) Documentation of controls and procedures.

(vi) Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action. 

(vii) Development of contingency plans.

(viii) Training and professional development

(ix) Ethical and business standards

(x) Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and 

procedures to address the risks identified.

Compliance with Credit Union policies is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal

Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit to which they

relate, with summaries submitted to the Supervisory Committee, senior management and the Board of Directors.

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a variety of causes associated with the Credit

Union’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than financial risks

such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements.

Requirements for the appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of 

transactions.

The Credit Union’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and 

damage to its reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and 

creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to identify operational risk is

assigned to the Board and management. This responsibility is supported by overall Credit Union standards for the

management of operational risk in the following areas:
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GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

e) Capital Management

(i)   

(ii)  

(iii) 

(iv) To maintain the members’ confidence in the safety and viability of the Credit Union.

(i)   Hold a minimum level of the regulatory capital of 6% of total assets; and

(ii)   Maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets at or above 10%.

(iii)   

 Merger Date  Statutory 

Reserve  1st January 

2017       100,689,871 

The Credit Union’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of

the statement of financial position, are:

All League and Bank of Jamaica regulatory capital requirements were met during the year ended 31st December

2020.

The League currently requires member credit unions to maintain a minimum level of institutional capital at 8% of 

total assets. The proposed Bank of Jamaica regulations require the League to ensure that member Credit Unions:

To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business; and

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified according to the

nature of, and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with each asset and

counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-

statement of financial position exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the

potential losses.

In determining the Credit Union's capital base (Institutional Capital), the Institutional Capital of the acquired Credit

Union, (see below) was included. As at the date of transfer of engagements/amalgamations, the relevant Credit

Union had Institutional Capital  as stated below which comprised the following balance:

At least twenty percent (20%) of net income must be transferred to Institutional Capital at the end of each

financial year before any appropriation of surplus.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored by the Credit Union’s management, based on

the guidelines in its Capital Management Policy.

Hanover Co-Operative Credit Union Limited

To comply with the capital requirements set by the League and the proposed Bank of Jamaica (BOJ)

Credit Union Regulations, under which entities within the credit union movement operate;

To safeguard the Credit Union’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide 

returns for members and benefits for other stakeholders;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions have been used:

(a)

(b)

(c )

(d)

(e )

(f)

(g)

The estimated fair values of the off-statement of financial position financial instruments are based on market

prices for similar facilities. When this information is not available, fair value is estimated using discounted cash

flow analysis;

Financial investments classified as fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value by reference to

quoted market prices when available. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated

on the basis of pricing models or other recognised valuation techniques. Unquoted equities are measured at

historical cost less impairment, as their fair values cannot be reliably determined;

Financial investments classified that are held-to-maturity are measured at amortised cost with a carrying value

of $868,735,989 (2019 $543,740,528).

The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimated by comparing market interest rates when the loans were granted

with current market rates offered on similar loans. For match-funded loans, the fair value is assumed to be

equal to their carrying value, as gains and losses offset each other. Changes in the credit quality of

loans within the portfolio are not taken into account in determining gross fair values, as the impact of credit

risk is recognised separately by deducting the amount of the provisions for credit losses from both book and

fair values.

The fair value of members’ deposits with no specific maturity is assumed to be the amount payable on demand

at the statement of financial position date;

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

The fair value of liquid assets and other assets maturing within one year is assumed to approximate their

carrying amount. This assumption is applied to liquid assets, with the exception of unquoted equities and the

short-term elements of all other financial assets and financial liabilities;

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,

willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Market price is used to determine fair value where an active market

(such as a recognised stock exchange) exists, as it is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument.

However, market prices are not available for a number of financial assets and liabilities held and issued by the

Credit Union. Therefore, for financial instruments where no market price is available, the fair values presented have

been estimated using present value or other estimation and valuation techniques based on market conditions

existing at the statement of financial position date.

The values derived from applying these techniques are significantly affected by the underlying assumptions used 

concerning both the amounts and timing of future cash flows and the discount rates.

The fair value of variable rate financial instruments is assumed to approximate their carrying amounts;

Financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value are grouped based

on the degree to which their fair value is observable: 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial Instruments and Financial Instruments Risk Management (Cont'd):

f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments Cont'd:

•

•

•

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ $ $ $

Unquoted equities -                 -                    172,181,711   172,181,711      

42,615,614    -                    -                 42,615,614        

-                 868,735,989     -                 868,735,989      

42,615,614    868,735,989     172,181,711   1,083,533,314   

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ $ $ $

Unquoted equities -                 -                    34,498,417     34,498,417        

53,084,537    -                    -                 53,084,537        

-                 543,740,528     -                 543,740,528      

53,084,537    543,740,528     34,498,417     631,323,482      

Fixed and other deposits

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset

or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant

inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Available for sale-

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level

1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices). The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation

techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and

rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2; and

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. There are no revalued financial assets

grouped in level 3.

Fixed and other deposits

Quoted equities

Available for sale-

2019

The following table presents the Credit Union’s financial assets that are measured at fair value at 31

December:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities. The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted

market prices at the date of the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices

are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or

regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s

length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets is the current bid price. These instruments are

grouped in Level 1;

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Quoted equities

2020
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(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

5. Earning Assets-Liquid Assets:

2020 2019

$ $

Savings Account Balances & Demand Deposits 576,534,899       550,458,695        

Short Term Investments

Other Financial Institutions 483,427,309       825,739,020        

1,059,962,208    1,376,197,715     

6.

2020 2019

$ $

Balance at Beginning of Year 5,590,228,551    4,918,347,417     

Loans Granted 2,340,000,000    2,758,600,000     

7,930,228,551    7,676,947,417     

Less Repayments and Transfers (1,733,661,147)   (2,086,718,866)    

6,196,567,404    5,590,228,551     

Less Provision for Loan Impairment (121,014,287)      (95,444,062)         

6,075,553,117    5,494,784,489     

Add Interest Receivable 112,634,620       40,740,934          

Balance at End of Year 6,188,187,737    5,535,525,423     

7. Provision for Loan Impairment:

(a)

2020 2019

$ $

          95,444,062           90,683,578 

          77,183,238           21,000,000 

        (51,613,013) (16,239,516)         

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (IFRS 9)         121,014,287           95,444,062 

(62,610,794)        (45,611,145)         

          58,403,493           49,832,917 

Loan to Members:

 The movement in the provision for loan impairment determined under the requirements of IFRS is as follows: 

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st DECEMBER 2020

 Balance, January 1 

 Increase in ECL Provision for the year 

 Charged off Loans 

 JCCUL regulatory requirement (Note b) 
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(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

7. Provision for Loan Impairment Cont'd:

(b) Net Movement on Loan Impairment Provision

2020 2019

$ $

Additional amounts provided for during the year (IFRS)

Charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income
          77,183,238 21,000,000          

Provision for loan losses determined under JCCUL Regulatory requirements is as follows:

 Number  

of Loans 

 Delinquent 

Loans  
 Provision 

Rate  

 Savings Held 

Against Loans 
 Exposure 

   Loan Loss 

Provision 

 $  %  $  $  $ 

49 49,135,752      -            466,491                       48,669,261                          -   

28
31,699,073      

10
532,800             

          31,166,273             3,169,907 

59 45,340,655      30 663,672                       44,676,983           13,602,196 

102
65,476,892      

60
1,091,368          

          64,385,524           39,286,135 

14 6,552,556        100 404,525                         6,148,031             6,552,556 

252      198,204,927            3,158,856         195,046,071           62,610,794 

 Number  

of Loans 

 Delinquent 

Loans   Provision 

Rate  

 Savings Held 

Against Loans 

 Exposure    Loan Loss 

Provision 

 $  %  $  $  $ 

82        80,460,329 -            14,772,144                  65,688,185                          -   

43        27,475,435 10 4,883,356                    22,592,079             2,747,543 

53        42,451,972 30 5,987,554                    36,464,418           12,735,592 

78        36,086,969 60 3,517,332                    32,569,637           21,652,181 

29          8,475,829 100 441,130                         8,034,698             8,475,829 

285      194,950,533          29,601,515         165,349,018           45,611,145 

2019

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st DECEMBER 2020

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

 2 to 3 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

2020

Over 12

6 to 12

3 to 6

 Less than 2 

 Number of 

Months  in 

Arrears 

 3 to 6 

 6 to 12 

2 to 3

 Over 12 

 Number of 

Months  in 

Arrears 

Less than 2
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

8. Financial Investments:

2020 2019

$ $

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Unquoted Equities 

(a) Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Ltd 9,074,411               9,437,426              

(b) Quality Network Co-operative Limited (QNET) 2,701,589               2,335,771              

(c) Credit Union Fund Management Company Limited 17,105,223             16,725,220            

(d) First Heritage Co-operative Credit Union Limited 2,500                      -                        

Quoted Equities

Other - Sagicor Real Estates 42,302,026             52,770,949            

           -Sagicor Sigma 80,995,962             82,521,265            

            - Communities & Workers of Jamaica Credit Union Ltd 20,000,000             -                        

Central Strategic Service 5,000,000               5,000,000              

Jamaica Co-operative Insurance Agency 1,000,000               1,000,000              

178,181,711           169,790,631          

Fair value through profit or loss

Quoted Equities

Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited 203,847                  203,847                 

Mayberry Investments Limited 109,741                  109,741                 

313,588                  313,588                 

Amortised cost

Placement with Other Financial Institutions 736,217,048           411,221,587          

Government of Jamaica Securities 132,518,941           132,518,941          

868,735,989           543,740,528          

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses under IFRS 9 (13,203,781)            (14,192,082)           

1,034,027,507        699,652,665          

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020 2019

$ $

27,579,225             42,284,069            

88,371,871             52,930,146            

115,951,096           95,214,215            

Cash in hand

Current Accounts

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

The rules of the League stipulate that the Credit Union must invest 5% of the net increase in the members’ share

accounts in the League’s mortgage fund instruments. These investments are used to secure joint mortgage

facilities, which are extended to the members of the Credit Union.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Unquoted equities represents shares held in the League. A minimum of 1,000,000 shares with a par value of

$1.00 each must be held with the league for the Credit Union to retain membership status.

The unquoted equity investment in First Heritage Co-operative Credit Union Limited represents permanent

shares, allowing Gateway CCU Limited to invest funds with the Credit Union.

The unquoted equity investment in Quality Network Co-operative Limited represents 2.7% of the issued ordinary

share capital of the company.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

10 Other Receivables & Prepayments

2020 2019

$ $

Other Receivables 33,842,998             40,859,280            

Prepayments 30,843,760             13,210,087            

64,686,758             54,069,367            

11

2020 2019

$ $

24,292,148             20,214,649            

Additions 54,911,825             4,077,499              

Disposal (20,214,649)            -                        

31st December 58,989,324             24,292,148            

Accumulated Amortisation:

17,473,321             14,731,994            

Charge for the year 6,600,384               2,741,327              

Disposal (19,757,760)            -                        

31st December 4,315,945               17,473,321            

54,673,379             6,818,827              

12 Lease Right-of-Use-Assets

Building Total

$ $

                            -                              -   

             13,246,266             13,246,266 

             13,246,266             13,246,266 

                            -                              -   

               3,257,676               3,257,676 

               3,257,676               3,257,676 

               9,988,590               9,988,590 

-                         -                        

Intangible Assets

At Cost:

1st January

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Intangible assets comprise computer accounting software acquired by the Credit Union and implementation costs of

this software. The cost is amortised over the expected useful life of these assets which is estimated by management to

be three years.

Net Book Value

1st January

Cost

 31st December 2019 

Additions of new lease contracts

 31st December 2019 

 31st December 2020 

Right of use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line 

basis.

 31st December 2020 

Accumulated Depreciation

 31st December 2019 

Charge for the year

 31st December 2020 

Net Book Value
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

13. Property, Plant & Equipment:

Buildings & Machinery  & Computer Furniture  &

Land Infrastructure Office Equipment Equipment Fixtures Total
$ $ $ $ $ $

At Cost or Valuation:

199,283,693   329,777,804    38,376,137            43,510,766     5,025,391       615,973,790   

Additions1 -                   -                   4,880,355              9,121,668       1,482,250       15,484,273     

Revaluation Adjustment -                   -                   (136,564)                136,564          -                   -                  

Disposal/Write Off -                    -                   (519,546)                (364,622.00)   (45,694)           (929,862)         

              31st December 1997  199,283,693   329,777,804    42,600,382            52,404,376     6,461,947       630,528,201   

Additions -                   44,592,833      15,289,776            6,895,318       3,559,901       70,337,828     

Disposal/Write Off (122,681,783)   (78,114,843)     (2,132,662)             -                  (378,107)         (203,307,395)  

 31st December 2020 76,601,910     296,255,794    55,757,496            59,299,694     9,643,741       497,558,634   59,299,694     

Depreciation:

  31st December 2018 -                   16,500,700      18,612,176            18,455,331     1,244,764       54,812,971     

Charge for year -                   8,291,577        4,939,761              9,973,333       752,063           23,956,734     

Reclassification -                   -                   (8,470)                    8,470              -                   -                  

Disposal/Write Off -                   -                   (480,113)                (85,079)           (15,231)           (580,423)         

  31st December 2019 -                   24,792,277      23,063,354            28,352,055     1,981,596.00  78,189,282     

Charge for year -                   7,809,838        2,537,775              8,905,286       887,927           20,140,826     

Disposal/Write Off -                   (7,333,333)       (940,476)                -                  (133,678)         (8,407,487)      

 31st December 2020 -                   25,268,782      24,660,653            37,257,341     2,735,845       89,922,621     

Net Book Value:

 31st December 2020 76,601,910     270,987,012    31,096,843            22,042,353     6,907,896       407,636,013   

31st December 2019 -                   304,985,527    19,537,028            24,052,321     4,480,351       552,338,919   

31st December 2018 -                   313,277,104    19,763,961            25,055,435     3,780,627       561,160,819   

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

 31st December 2019 

 31st December 2018 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

14.

2020 2019

$ $

Fair value of plan assets      363,737,000     329,617,000 

Present value of funded obligations           (300,290,000)          (270,909,000)

Asset in the statement of financial position     63,447,000    58,708,000 

The movement in the fair value of plan assets during the year was as follows:

2020 2019

$ $

        329,617,000        286,033,000 

           (4,024,000)            8,640,000 

         7,950,000         8,588,000 

         9,533,000       10,055,000 

25,294,000                      20,596,000 

       (2,429,000)       (2,072,000)

(2,204,000)                        (2,223,000)

        363,737,000        329,617,000 

The movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the year was as follows:

2020 2019

$ $

        270,909,000        239,775,000 

9,403,000               8,653,000              

20,593,000            17,058,000 

       29,996,000       25,711,000 

Actuarial(gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions        (3,347,000)     (14,060,000)

Actuarial loss from change in demographic assumptions                      -              765,000 

Actuarial (gain)/loss -experience adjustments (4,597,000)                   10,886,000 

              (7,944,000)              (2,409,000)

         9,533,000       10,055,000 

(2,204,000)                    (2,223,000)

           300,290,000           270,909,000 

 Employer contributions 

Retirement Benefit Assets:

The following represents the Credit Union’s share of amounts allocated to participating credit unions:

 At beginning of year 

 Interest income 

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

The Credit Union participates in a multi-employer defined pension plan. The pension plan is generally funded by

payments from employees and the Credit Union, taking into account the recommendation of independent qualified

actuaries. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines the amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually as

a function of one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

 Re-measurements on plan assets 

 Employee contributions 

Experience loss

 Administrative expenses 

 Benefits paid 

 At end of year 

 At beginning of year 

 Employee's Contribution 

 Re-measurements- 

 Benefits paid 

 At end of year 

 Interest cost 

 Current service cost 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

14. Retirement Benefit Assets Cont'd:

The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2020 2019

$ $

Included in administrative expenses-

            9,403,000            8,653,000 

          20,593,000          17,058,000 

     (25,294,000)     (20,596,000)

2,429,000            2,072,000              

7,131,000        7,187,000              

Included in other comprehensive income (OCI)-

Actuarial loss on obligation            (7,944,000)           (2,409,000)

Actuarial loss (gain) on plan assets                4,024,000 (8,640,000)             

Total components of defined benefit cost recorded in OCI (3,920,000)              (11,049,000)           

3,211,000        (3,862,000)             

2020 2019

$

          58,708,000          46,258,000 

           (7,131,000)           (7,187,000)

         3,920,000       11,049,000 

         7,950,000         8,588,000 

          63,447,000          58,708,000 

2020 2019

$ $

9.00 7.50

6.00 5.00

Pension increases 4.50 3.00

Future salary increases 6.50 5.00

 Defined benefit cost 

 Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 

 Movement in the pension asset recognised in the statement of financial position: 

 Interest income on plan 

assets  Administrative expense 

 Total re-measurements included in other comprehensive income 

 At beginning of year 

Expected contributions to the plan for the year ending 31st December 2021 amount to $7,810,000 which

is based on contribution rate of 8% Pensionable Salaries.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

 Interest cost 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

 Current service cost 

 Discount rate 

 At end of year 

Post-employment mortality for active members and mortality for pensioners and deferred pensioners is based on

the 1983 Credit Union Annuity Mortality (sex differentiated rates).

 Staff costs 

 The principal actuarial assumptions used in valuing post-employment benefits were as follows: 

 Price inflation (CPI) 

 Employers' contribution 

paid 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020  

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

14. Retirement Benefit Assets Cont'd:

% $ % $

20.35 74,029            24.28 80,043            

Local Registered Stocks -                 -                 8.81 29,041            

Unit Trusts 4.22 15,350            

1.09 3,967              1.05 3,447              

31.29 113,811         33.37 109,993         

2.07 7,526              4.35 14,325            

15.81 57,499            4.70 15,498            

24.26 88,225            22.27 73,411            

2.88 10,487            2.86 9,429              

-1.97 (7,157)            3.09 10,195            

363,737         345,382         

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fair Value of Plan Assets -                 257,346         286,031         329,616         363,737           

Defined Benefit Obligation -                 195,014         239,774         270,909         300,290           

Surplus -                 62,332            46,257            58,707            63,447             

Experience adjustments-

Fair Value of Plan Assets -                 4,559              (3,418)            8,640              (4,024)              

Defined Benefit Obligation -                 3,479              (5,916)            10,886            (4,597)              

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

2020 2019

 Investment properties 

 US Certificate of deposit 

The five year trend for the fair value of plan assets, the defined benefit obligations, the surplus in the pension plan, and experience adjustments for plan assets and liabilities were as follows:

 US$ bonds 

 Other 

The distribution of plan assets was as follows:

 Real Estate investment trust 

 Quoted equities 

 Government of Jamaica bonds 

 Repurchase agreements 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

14. Retirement Benefit Assets Cont'd:

Risk associated with pension plans and post-employment plans

Asset Volatility

Inflation risk

Life expectancy

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to Government of Jamaica bond yields;

if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit.

Through its defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medical plans, the Credit Union is exposed to a

number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities in the event that discretionary pension increases are granted. The

majority of the plan’s assets are either unaffected by fixed interest bonds, meaning that an increase in inflation will

reduce the surplus or create a deficit.

The League ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM)

framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under

the pension plan. Within this framework, the League’s ALM objective is to match assets to the pension

obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments as

they fall due. The League actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are

matching the expected cash outflows arising from the pension obligations. The League has not changed the

processes used to manage its risks from previous periods. The League does not use derivatives to manage its

risk. Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a material

impact on the overall level of assets. A large portion of assets in 2017 consists of Government of Jamaica bonds

and Investment Properties.

The majority of the plan’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life

expectancy will result in an increase in the plan’s liabilities. This is particularly significant, where inflationary

increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

As the plan matures, the League intends to reduce the level of investment risk by investing more in assets that

better match the liabilities. The Government bonds largely represent investments in Government of Jamaica

securities.

A decrease in Government of Jamaica bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset

by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

Changes in bond yields
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

15.

2020 2019

$ $

3,205,198,239        2,786,208,722       

2,562,934,286        1,647,333,404       

Interest paid during the year (relating to prior year) 66,686,674             65,168,167            

5,834,819,199        4,498,710,293       

Less: Withdrawal and transfers (2,363,974,128)       (1,293,512,054)      

3,470,845,071        3,205,198,239       

Interest accrued on Member's voluntary shares 16,629,233             45,084,902            

3,487,474,304        3,250,283,141       

16.

2020 2019

$ $

Movements on deposit balances during the year:

(a)

1,917,156,855        1,728,056,648       

Arising on business combination -                         -                        

2,721,746,555        2,621,101,309       

40,644,753             44,822,845            

4,679,548,163        4,393,980,802       

(2,682,104,386)       (2,476,823,947)      

1,997,443,777        1,917,156,855       

(b) Members' Ordinary Deposits

1,852,567,148        1,707,942,678       

Arising on business combination -                         -                        

2,075,463,875        2,488,314,134       

27,591,168             25,439,713            

3,955,622,191        4,221,696,525       

(1,936,600,549)       (2,369,129,377)      

2,019,021,642        1,852,567,148       

4,016,465,419        3,769,724,003       

51,967,130             79,405,851            

4,068,432,549        3,849,129,854       

Savings Deposits

 Add: Deposits during the year 

 Add: Deposits during the year 

 Interest during the year 

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

Balance at Beginning of Year

Less: Withdrawals and transfers

 Balance at beginning of year 

Total Savings deposits

 Interest during the year 

Less: Withdrawals and transfers

 Members' Special and Fixed 

Deposits  Balance at beginning of year 

Add: Deposits during the year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Balance at End of Year

 Interest accrued on members' deposits 

Members' Voluntary Shares:
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

16.

2020 2019

$ $

i Ordinary Members' Deposits 2,019,021,642        1,852,567,148       

ii Special Savings 1,087,425,663        1,010,796,338       

iii Golden Harvest Saving Plan 360,662,536           325,350,356          

iv Certificate of Deposit/Fixed Deposit 376,759,721           340,759,648          

v GCCU Gift Certificate 5,080                      5,080                     

vi GCCU Partner Plan 172,590,777           240,245,433          

4,016,465,419        3,769,724,003       

i Ordinary Members' Deposit

ii

iii

iv Certificate of Deposits/Fixed Deposit

v GCCU Gift Certificate

vi GCCU Partner Plan

17. Lease Liabilities

2020 2019

$ $

Lease Liabilities              10,368,902 -                        

Current Portion of Lease Liabilities               (4,188,781) -                        

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Special Savings

A range of savings account that offers a variety of terms inclusive of a minimum amount at $500.00. Interest rates

may exceed the ordinary deposit account by 5%. A member may save and withdraw as necessary and the funds

maybe used as security for loans.

A savings instrument with a free decreasing term life insurance. It is designed for financial success and

protection and your monthly deposit guarantee the achievement of your goal. Its insured against total and

permanent disability and death.  Once the contract is signed and the first deposit made, the total goal is assured.

GCCU Partner Plan is similar to that of the traditional Partner Plan. A fixed amount, minimum $500 per week, is

deposited to the account on a particular day each week. A Member may select from the following options; 16, 24,

36 of 48 weeks to save.  A bonus is paid at maturity.

Members are encouraged to use this option to reward their children or give gifts to friends and relatives on certain

occasions. The funds are deposited in the account and a certificate is produced for the member. In cases where

GCCU rewards children with Gift Certificates; the certificate is used to open their account at GCCU. It is not

exchangeable.

This instrument requires a minimum of $20,000 to start and is matured/rolled over every 30-day. It has an interest

tier of 1%-4% based on the amount fixed.

Golden Harvest Deposits

Savings Deposits Cont'd:

A regular savings account which allows members to save and withdraw as necessary. The amount in this

account can be used as security for loans.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

18. Accounts & Other payables & Accruals

2020 2019

$ $

Statutory Deductions 7,803,904               10,285,755            

Family Indemnity Plan 39,476,129             27,616,045            

Other Payables 68,228,791             38,293,848            

115,508,824           76,195,648            

Accrued Charges 53,287,166             26,123,464            

168,795,990           102,319,112          

19. Members'  Permanent Share Capital:

2020 2019

$ $

 Balance at Beginning of Year 134,068,267           139,047,323          

Add Permanent Share Capital Subscribed 5,348,000               6,478,000              

Less Transfers/deductions (629,766)                (11,457,056)           

Balance at End of Year 138,786,501           134,068,267          

20. Non-Institutional Capital:

2020 2019

$ $

a) Investment Property Reserves -                         75,056,662            

b) Revaluation Reserve 75,056,663             -                        

c) Retirement Benefit Reserves 63,447,000             58,708,000            

d) General Reserves 576,428                  576,428                 

e) Share Transfer Fund 2,000,000               2,000,000              

f) Fair Value Reserves 7,584,704               24,469,872            

g) Accumulated Surplus 81,955,783             55,785,451            

230,620,578           216,596,413          

(a) Investment Property Reserve

This reserve comprises the unrealised surplus on the periodic revaluation of the investment properties.

(b) Revaluation Reserve

The Credit Union no longer has Investment Properties. All Investment Properties were reclassified to Property,

Plant & Equipment as such any unrealise surplus resulting from the revaluation of Investment Properties was

reclassified from Investment Property Reserve to Revaluation Reserve.

Dividend  may be paid on members' share capital which is subject to the profitability of the Credit Union.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

This represents unrealise surplus resulting from the revaluation of Investment Properties later

reclassified/transferred to Property, Plant & Equipment.

The Credit Union has issued share capital which is not withdrawable by members but is invested as risk capital. Share

Capital in the Credit Union is unlimited and represents shares of $1.00 each invested by members. To satisfy

membership, each member must maintain a minimum share capital value of $2,000. This amount is only redeemable

upon termination of membership with the credit union.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

20. Non-Institutional Capital (cont'd):

(c) Retirement Benefit Asset Reserve

(d ) General Reserve

(e) Share Fund Transfer

(f ) Fair Value Reserve

21. Institutional Capital:

2020 2019

$ $

Permanent Reserve 402,573,864           358,573,864          

Business Combination Reserve 255,820,241           255,820,241          

Statutory & Legal Reserves (Note 29) 239,111,865           217,302,520          

897,505,970           831,696,625          

Permanent Reserve

Statutory & Legal Reserves

Business Combination Reserve

22. Interest Income

2020 2019

$ $

Loan and advances 645,765,098           631,963,934          

645,765,098           631,963,934          

Financial Investments

 Fair value through other comprehensive income 36,763,352             10,527,295            

 Amortised cost 16,061,909             43,906,255            

Reverse repurchase agreement 8,911,470               13,774,786            

Deposits and Other 11,110,541             11,435,074            

72,847,272             79,643,410            

718,612,370           711,607,344          

Permanent reserve comprises amounts transferred from accumulated surplus, from time to time on the

recommendation of the directors to assist in maintaining the capital base of the Credit Union.

This reserve comprises the unrealised fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets.

The general reserve was established for the purpose of providing funding for the possible merger opportunities

with other credit unions, or any other stipulated project as determined by the Board of Directors.

The share fund transfer was established in accordance with Rule 15 of the Credit Union's rules, for the purpose of

redeeming permanent shares from a member of the Credit Union.

As required by the Co-operative Societies Act and the rules of the Credit Union, a minimum of twenty percent (20%) of

the annual surplus before entrance fees, and amounts collected from entrance fees, must be transferred to this

reserve.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

The business combination reserve is a reserve arising on the merger of two or more co-operatives and is not available

for distribution. It is being retained to maintain the capital base of the Credit Union.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

This reserve was created to match the value of the retirement benefit asset of the Credit Union. Movement on

reserve is dealt with as an appropriation to or from the accumulated surplus.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

23. Interest Expense

2020 2019

$ $

Members' fixed deposits 10,174,476             10,429,278            

Members' ordinary deposits 32,781,516             26,042,259            

Members' voluntary shares 51,333,333             65,168,168            

Members' other deposits 38,112,341             33,791,020            

132,401,666           135,430,725          

24. Insurance Protection

2020 2019

$ $

Life Savings and Loan Protection Insurance 33,071,176             30,803,395            

Golden Harvest Insurance 3,205,482               2,921,522              

Security Processing 1,468,509               2,006,300              

General Insurance 7,136,852               6,899,602              

44,882,019             42,630,819            

25. Other Financial Costs

2020 2019

$ $

Bank Charges and Interest 2,733,993               2,377,675              

Interest on Lease Liabilities 1,228,111               -                        

Loan Interest Expense -                         1,396,429              

3,962,104               3,774,104              

26. Fees and Other Income:

 2020 2019

$ $

Statement and other credit information 28,029,099             39,839,326            

Gain on Foreign Exchange 7,553,121               5,357,974              

(Loss)/Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 62,983,180             (339,739)               

Other Fees 78,862,982             41,187,962            

177,428,382           86,045,523            

27. Operating  Expenses:

Personnel Expenses: 2020 2019

$ $

Employee Salaries and Wages 200,976,590           209,439,998          

Other Employee Benefits 74,010,162             72,584,217            

Statutory contributions 24,728,517             28,344,096            

Pension Cost 7,131,000               7,187,000              

306,846,269           317,555,311          

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED



Page 55
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27. Operating  Expenses (cont'd):

Administrative Expenses:

2020 2019

$ $

Utilities 41,190,241             32,685,881            

Depreciation and Amortisation 29,998,885             26,698,058            

Property Expenses 19,774,254             22,071,144            

Rental Expense 4,641,832               -                        

Auditors' remuneration 3,092,594               3,501,890              

Security 11,319,856             10,285,055            

Printing, Stationery and Postage 7,458,483               12,269,993            

Insurance Protection           (Note 24) 44,882,019             42,630,819            

Legal and Other professional fees 5,876,770               7,376,690              

Transportation and Communication 5,201,337               5,582,505              

Awards and Donations 57,166                    510,749                 

Miscellaneous & Other Expense (Net) 4,565,503               2,498,538              

Unrecoverable General Consumption Tax 23,408,528             21,056,275            

Merger Expenses -                         106,268                 

201,467,468           187,273,865          

Marketing and Promotion: 2020 2019

$ $

Publicity and Promotion 24,669,452             26,276,265            

Public Relations -                         1,525,860              

24,669,452             27,802,125            

Representation and Affiliation: 2020 2019

$ $

League and Other Dues 34,634,064             34,057,148            

Board of Directors & Committees 7,577,359               7,870,200              

Annual General Meetings 4,194,193               8,142,474              

Meetings/ Special Functions 1,429,849               1,949,808              

47,835,465             52,019,630            

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 580,818,654           584,650,931          

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020
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28. Appropriations:

2020 2019

$ $

Dividend on Permanent Shares 7,809,963               11,157,043            

Honoraria 6%/(4%) 3,331,418               3,187,727              

Permanent Reserve 44,000,000             50,000,000            

Retained Earnings 644,070                  15,348,396            

55,785,451             79,693,166            

29. Statutory and Legal Reserves:

2020 2019

$ $

Balance at beginning of year 217,302,520           205,112,456          

20% Statutory Reserves 20,532,678             10,459,514            

Entrance Fees 1,276,667               1,730,550              

Balance at End of Year 239,111,865           217,302,520          

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

Statutory and Legal Reserves are maintained in accordance with the provisions of the Co-operative Societies Act

which requires that a minimum of 20% of Net Income be carried to a reserve fund. Upon application by a Registered

Society, the Registrar may allow the required percentage to be reduced but not below 10%.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

30. Commitments

(a)

(b)

31. Insurance

(a) Fidelity Insurance Coverage

(b) Life Savings and Loan Protection Insurance

32. Related Party Transactions and Balances

(a)

2020 2019

$ $

Directors and Committee Members-

Shares and savings 33,762,825           26,934,118          

Loans, including interest 96,538,478           49,394,151          

Staff Members-

Shares and savings 57,458,748           69,875,536          

Loans, including interest 218,478,414         226,671,508        

Family members of key management-

Shares and savings 29,585,301           37,213,672          

Loans, including interest 29,148,660           73,958,854          

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

At 31st December 2020, there were commitments of approximately $167,430,500 (2019: $129,254,308) in respect

of loans approved, but not disbursed.

At 31st December 2020, there were no commitments in respect of educational grants approved for employees but

not disbursed (2019 - $0)

 Fidelity insurance coverage was maintained during the year. 

To meet the financial needs of members, the Credit Union enters into various irrevocable commitments.

 There were life savings and loans protection insurance during the year. 

Related parties of the Credit Union include staff members, committee members and the Board of Directors.

During the year, no related parties received loans which necessitated waivers. Loans owing by directors,

committee members and staff members were being repaid in accordance with their loan agreements.

At year end, staff members and key management of the Credit Union (and their families) maintained the following

balances with the Credit Union:
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(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars unless otherwise stated)

32. Related Party Transactions and Balances-Cont'd

(b) Purchase of goods

(c ) Key management compensation

2020 2019

$ $

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 72,281,257           66,728,733          

Post-employment benefits 3,831,393             3,424,522            

76,112,650           70,153,255          

33. Comparison of Ledger Balances

Share Voluntary

Capital Shares Deposits Loans

$ $ $ $

Balance as per General Ledger 138,786,501   3,487,474,304     4,016,465,419      6,196,567,404     

Balance as per Members Ledger 138,786,501   3,487,474,304     4,016,465,419      6,196,567,404     

-                  -                       -                        -                       

34. Comparative Information:

35 Contingent Liabilities:

Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-classified to conform with changes in presentation in the current

year.

These balances do not include interest accrued and impairment provisions.

The supplier who supply the on-site staff canteen with goods is no longer a committee member of the credit union.

GATEWAY CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION (2017) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONT'D

As at 31st December 2020 there were no claim pending against the Credit Union:
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36. Restatement Business Combination:

Details of net assets acquired and net cash outlay on acquisition are as follows:

HCCU

$

Liquid Assets 361,121,238         

Loans to Members after Provision for Impairment 1,130,488,197      

Financial Investments 59,617,752           

Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,048,976           

Other Receivables & Prepayments 911,161                

Property, Plant and Equipment 442,606,332         *

Retirement Benefit Asset 18,602,000           

Members' Voluntary Shares (833,765,622)       

Members' Saving Deposits (784,019,167)       

Borrowing (89,936,939)         

(32,335,364)         

296,338,564         

Members' Permanent Share Capital 38,034,192           

Business Combination Reserve 255,820,241         

Cash Acquired

Liquid Assets - Non-Earning 361,121,238         

Liquid Assets - Earning 23,048,976           

384,170,214         

This item has been restated to for adjustments to the fair value of certain Property, Plant and Equipment on

acquisition. 

Accounts Payable

Effective January 1, 2017, Montego Co-operative Credit Union Limited (MCCU) and Hanover Co-operative Credit Union

Limited (HCCU) merged to form Gateway Co-operative Credit Union (2017) Limited (GCCU). In accordance with IFRS

3- Business Combinations, the transaction was deemed to be a reverse acquisition. In reverse acquisitions, the legal

acquirer, GCCU is not deemed to be the acquirer for accounting purposes, and one of the previously existing entities

being deemed the acquirer. MCCU was identified as the acquirer as prescribed by IFRS 3 qualifying factors. The then

members of both MCCU and HCCU became members of GCCU, through the issue of shares by GCCU. As MCCU was

deemed to be the acquirer, the value ascribed to the shares issued to the legacy HCCU members was determined by

reference to the fair value of the equity in HCCU at acquisition date that was given up by the legacy HCCU members, to

obtain the equity received in MCCU. The value so determined was $38,034,192. There was no goodwill or negative

goodwill arising on the acquisition, and any difference between the fair value of the net assets acquired and deemed

value for the shares issued, was credited to the retained earnings reserve in equity.    
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1.

2.

3. Penalty breaks on all Partner Plan savings deposit;

4. Waiver of transfer fees (internal) from Share accounts to main deposits;

5. Lifting of five (5) days hold on cheque;

6. Cost reduction strategies.

As a result of the increased credit exposure, the forward looking characteristics within the Credit Union's expected credit

loss model were amended, taking into account any significant increase in credit risk. The Credit Union recognised

expected credit loss provision of $77,183,238 in the 2020 financial year in comparison to $21,000,000 in 2019.

In light of the COVID 19 pandemic, the Credit Union has managed to maintain profitability, with a ninety-six percent

(96%) increase in net income for the 2020 financial year when compared to 2019. The entity has also managed to

remain liquid, with current ratio of 5.6, indicative that the entity is able to meet the obligations of its current liabilities if

they should become due now.

Twelve months moratorium (Payment holiday);

Waiver of all late charges for three (3) months;

In an effort to monitor, minimise and mitigate against the impact of COVID 19, the Credit Union's team of management

proactively implemented the following measures;

The effects of the twelve months moratorium, provided a cushion for members as it relates to their financial burden.

However, this resulted in a decline of the Credit Union's cash inflow and an increase in the loan interest receivables of

166%, moving from $40,740,934 as at December 31, 2019 to $112,634,620 as at December 31, 2020. 

The Jamaican economy has been adversely impacted, with the tourism sector being hit the hardest.

Approximately twenty-five percent of the Credit Union's $6 billion dollar loan portfolio is representative of amounts

recoverable from members within the tourism sector. 

The Credit Union's delinquency portfolio increased by two percent (2%) moving from $194,950,533 as at December 31,

2019 to $198,204,927 as at December 31, 2020.

The Credit Union during the 2020 financial year charged off $51,613,013 of its loan balances.

37. Impact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID 19)

The Novel Coronavirus developed rapidly during the 2020 Financial Year, with significant increases in case numbers.

Measures implemented by various governments to curtail the virus have affected economic activities and

businesses globally. 



ETERNAL FATHER BLESS OUR LAND,

GUARD US WITH THY MIGHTY HAND,

KEEP US FREE FROM EVIL POWERS,

BE OUR LIGHT THROUGH COUNTLESS HOURS.

TO OUR LEADERS, GREAT DEFENDER,

GRANT TRUE WISDOM FROM ABOVE.

JUSTICE, TRUTH BE OURS FOREVER,

 

JAMAICA, LAND WE LOVE.

JAMAICA, JAMAICA, JAMAICA LAND WE LOVE.

 

TEACH US TRUE RESPECT FOR ALL,

STIR RESPONSE TO DUTY’S CALL, STRENGTHEN US THE WEAK TO CHERISH,

GIVE US VISION LEST WE PERISH.

KNOWLEDGE SEND US HEAVENLY FATHER,

GRANT TRUE WISDOM FROM ABOVE.

JUSTICE, TRUTH BE OURS FOREVER,

 

JAMAICA, LAND WE LOVE.

JAMAICA, JAMAICA, JAMAICA LAND WE LOVE.

NATIONAL ANTHEM

SOLIDITY AMIDST ADVERSITY...... 



Lord, make me an instrument of your peace; 

where there is hatred, let me sow love; 

where there is injury, pardon; 

where there is doubt, faith; 

where there is despair, hope; 

where there is darkness, light; 

and where there is sadness, joy. 

 

O Divine Master, grant that I 

may not so much seek to be consoled as to console; 

to be understood, as to understand; 

to be loved, as to love; 

for it is in giving that we receive, 

it is in pardoning that we are pardoned, 

and it is in dying that we are born to Eternal Life. 

 

AMEN.

 

 

PRAYER OF ST. FRANCIS OF ASSISSI

SOLIDITY AMIDST ADVERSITY...... 



Head Office: 20 Church Street, Montego Bay. St James

Unit 14, the Marketplace, Fairview Estate. Montego Bay.

St. James

Main Street, Lucea, Hanover

2-4 Duke Street, Falmouth Trelawny

Our locations:

Branches:


